
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Thursday, 28th June, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 6

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee held 
on 21st March 2018. 

6.  LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION YEAR END REPORT 2017/18 7 - 28

To consider the Local Welfare Provision 2017/18. 

Public Document Pack



7.  NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2017/18 QUARTER 4 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

29 - 48

To review the progress of the Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2017/18 at Quarter 4. 

8.  ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLAN 2017/18 QUARTER 4 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

49 - 77

To review progress of the Economy Directorate plan at Quarter 4. 

9.  COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 
2018/19 

78 - 80

To consider a Work Programme for the Committee in 2018/19. 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Phil Burke
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Andy Kelly Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Ann Stott JP Councillor June West
Councillor Peter Williams Councillor Peter Winkler

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Michael Garraway
Senior Governance & Committees Services Officer
T: 01706 924716
E: Michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk

mailto:Michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 21st March 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Butterworth (in the Chair); Councillors Susan Emmott, 
Hartley, Malcolm, O’Neill, Stott, Wazir and Zaheer.

OFFICERS:  D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place), H. Chicot 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
38 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor West and 
Councillor Peter Williams.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
39 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
40 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview an Scrutiny Committee, held 22nd November 2017 be 
approved, as a correct record.  

INTEGRATED PLACE WORK
41 The Committee received a presentation, from the Director of 
Neighbourhoods (Integrated Place Project Lead Officer), on the Integrated 
Place Work project. The Integrated Place project involved a group of workers 
from different public services and third sector organisations who work together 
in a particular area. The team was led by Rochdale Borough Council. The 
team includes a number of organisations (such as RBH, Police and the Fire 
and Rescue Service).

The team worked in a particular area for a period of time to support people 
who may need lots of different services at the same time. The idea was that, 
instead of having to access these services separately, it made more sense for 
all organisations to work together to help the person move on. An example 
was a person that may need help with housing, health and relationships all at 
the same time. This could of course be confusing so the team would help to 
put those services in an order that made sense. They would also help the 
person to be more confident in asking for help or learning to do something.

The presentation generated a full debate at the meeting and numerous 
questions from members. The Committee noted that previous projects in the 
Balderstone and Kirkholt and Spotland and Falinge Wards had been highly 
successful. The project was due to begin operations on a Township level 
which would mean that it will be able to spread the work to all parts of the 
Borough in due course. It was suggested that a follow up presentation/report 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



be brought back to the Committee in approximately six months, to report on 
progress.

Decision:
1. That the presentation be noted and welcomed,
2. That the Integrated Place Project Lead Officer be invited to attend a 

future meeting of the Committee, in approximately six months to report 
on progress in relation to the Integrated Place Work Project.

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS
42 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
that outlined a proposal which would enable the Council to meet the 
responsibility placed on it by the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction 
Act. The proposal was to move from a Choice Based Lettings approach to 
allocate accommodation, to making direct offers to those who are found to be 
homeless and the Council has a statutory duty to rehouse. The report also 
advised that on occasions, it will be necessary for the Council to make an 
offer of accommodation in the private rented sector, in order to discharge its 
duty. A future proposal to amend the Housing Allocations Policy later in 
2018/19 was also detailed in the report.

The report had previously been considered by the Council’s Cabinet, where 
the recommendations contained therein were approved.

In considering the report the Committee sought clarification on number of 
issues: the numbers of homeless people and ‘rough sleepers’ in the Borough; 
clarification on the Council’s ‘discharge duty’ in respect of private rented 
property; how far back the Council will go in the pursuit of arrears; and the 
Council’s approach to overcrowding and housing large families.

Decision:
1. The Committee notes the proposed changes to the allocation of 

accommodation, for those applicants that the Council has a statutory 
duty to rehouse;

2. The Committee notes the proposal to discharge duty in private rented 
accommodation, where appropriate and necessary;

3. The Committee notes the delegation of approval of future policy 
changes to the Council’s Housing Allocation Policy, be granted to the 
Director of Neighbourhoods in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Environment and the Council’s Chief Finance Officer.

Reasons for the recommendation:
The proposed interim policy amendments will enable the Council to support 
those it has a statutory duty to rehouse, into appropriate accommodation in a 
more timely fashion, which will aid the Council in meeting the responsibilities 
placed on the local authority by the Homelessness Reduction Act. The 
delegation of authority should enable officers to monitor housing outcomes, as 
a result of the interim policy proposal and the following proposed new Housing 
Allocations Policy, and respond promptly to required policy changes.

Page 4



NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLANS 2017-18 QUARTER 3 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
43 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which advised of the progress at the end of Quarter 3 (31st December 2017) 
towards the achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2017/18.

Decision:
That the report be noted. 

Reason for the decision:
The Committee had previously approved the Directorate Plans for 2017/18 in 
respect of the Neighbourhoods Directorate. In accordance with the Council’s 
performance management framework, progress towards targets contained 
within directorate plans were reported to the appropriate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. The Quarter 3 progress 
report 2017/18, for the Neighbourhoods Directorate was attached at the 
Appendix to the report. Actions within the appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the agreed criteria.

ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLANS 2017-18 QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE 
UPDATE
44 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy which 
advised of the progress at the end of Quarter 3 (31st December 2017) towards 
the achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 
2017/18.

Decision:
That the report be noted. 

Reason for the decision:
The Committee had previously approved the Directorate Plans for 2017/18 in 
respect of the Economy Directorate. In accordance with the Council’s 
performance management framework, progress towards targets contained 
within directorate plans were reported to the appropriate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. The Quarter 3 progress 
report 2017/18, for the Neighbourhoods Directorate was attached at the 
Appendix to the report. Actions within the appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the agreed criteria.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
45 The Committee considered the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18.  

Decision: That the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18 be noted

Page 5



COMMITTEE REFERRAL
46 The Committee were advised of a decision made by Rochdale 
Township Committee at its meeting held 7th February 2018, where that 
Committee was considering the Highways Indicative Tow Year Work 
Programme – Rochdale Township (minute 57 refers), as follows: “The 
Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be requested to establish a scrutiny study group to examine the 
operation of the Highways Maintenance Contract for the Rochdale Borough, 
especially in relation to the performance of Balfour Beatty Limited and, if 
necessary, make appropriate recommendations to the Cabinet thereon.”

The Chair of the Committee advised that the Council’s Internal Audit team 
was presently undertaking some background work relating to the contract that 
the Council had entered into with Balfour Beatty Limited to undertake 
highways improvement work across the Borough on their behalf. The 
outcomes of these investigatory reports would be presented, when ready, to 
the Audit and Governance Committee. As a way of expediting the matter it 
was suggested that the Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee, together with 
the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee to look at this matter in 
more detail.

Decision;
That the Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee meet with the Chair of the 
Audit and Governance Committee, at the earliest opportunity, to discuss 
issues arising from the Internal Audit Team’s investigatory report into the 
Council’s highways maintenance contract with Balfour Beatty.       

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
47 Decision:
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.
 
Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be 
the disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

ROCHDALE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY – INVESTMENT AND MARKETING 
DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18
48 The Committee received a report that examined the Investments and 
Marketing Delivery Plan 2017/18 for the Rochdale Development Agency.  

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Page 6



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 28th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Emmott Cabinet 

Member for Environment
Report Author Helen Bellis
Public Document Public 

Local Welfare Provision Year End Report 2017/18

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

1.2

The report outlines the previous 12 months provision of the Discretionary 
Crisis Fund; detailing applicants to the scheme, the reasons why and what 
awards were made.

The report also details the successes of the community based projects funded 
by the Local Welfare Provision budget.

Access to the Rochdale and Heywood Food Banks is also included in the 
report.

Recommendation

2. To scrutinise the performance of the Local Welfare Provision 2017/18

Reason for Recommendation

3.  It has been agreed by Members of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee that a year-end and 6 monthly 
report would be presented.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The Discretionary Crisis Fund (DCF) provides ‘white goods’ and basic furniture 
in support of those setting up home when resettling from temporary 
accommodation; for example when fleeing domestic abuse or leaving 
temporary homelessness accommodation. The Fund also provides a 
mechanism to make small crisis awards for those who find themselves in 
financial difficulty; for example, to provide emergency household fuel, or for an 
emergency clothes allowance.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The local welfare provision budget also funds, alongside the DCF, small 
contributions to a number of Food Banks within the borough (see paragraphs 
4.16 to 4.20) and grant funds a number of community based projects (see 
Paragraph 4.15 and Appendix 1 of this report)

Applications to the DCF 2017/18
The DCF received 1,351 applications throughout 2017/18; 57% of these were 
made via the telephone, with the remainder being submitted online. 66% of 
applications were successful and 30% were refused. 86 of the applications 
were withdrawn or cancelled by applicants, or were pending a decision at the 
time of this report. 

The following bar chart compares applications received, successful and 
refused for 2016/17 and 2017/18. The data shows the scheme is receiving a 
similar number of applications compared with this time last year, and the 
number of applications that have been successful has seen little change.

Bar Chart 1 – Applications received, successful and refused for 2016/17 to 2017/18

The 3 main reasons for applications being refused were:

 when an applicant has not met with criteria as set out in the DCF 
policy (30%)

 when an applicant does not have a live benefit claim and therefore 
cannot be means tested to ensure they do not have the means to 
address their own needs (25%)

 when an applicant has submitted an application for a resettlement 
award but is not being supported by one of the verifying partners who 
supports applicants to resettle and assists in making an application to 
the DCF (15%)

The table below shows the applications received, those that were successful 

Page 8



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

and the number refused; the table compares with data for Q1 and Q2 2016/17 
and 2017 /18.

Table 1 -  Applications received, successful and refused for 2016/17 to 
2017/18

2017/18 313 191 (61%) 120 (38%)
2016/17 361 214 (59%) 138 (38%)
2017/18 280 178 (64%) 78 (28%)
2016/17 339 229 (68%) 103 (30%)
2017/18 357 237 (66%) 99 (28%)
2016/17 320 219 (68%) 92 (29%)
2017/18 401 273 (68%) 103 (26%)
2016/17 382 263 (69%) 86 (23%)
2017/18 1,351 879 (65%) 400 (30%)
2016/17 1,402 925 (66%) 419 (30%)

Refused 
applications

Q1

Q4

Applications 
receivedQuarter / Year Successful 

applications

Q3

Q2

Full year

5,014 individual items were awarded over 2017/18, with single bed with 
mattress, bedding items, energy payments, crockery and cutlery being the 
most requested items for support when resettling.

Unredeemed awards
There are a number of occasions when awards have been made and 
applicants do not redeem the award. For this financial year, 113 awards with a 
total value of £20,213 were not redeemed by applicants. Cancelled awards 
are usually due to the item no longer being needed, or on delivery it is found 
that the applicant already has the item. An Emergency Energy award expires 
if it has not been used within a month of allocation, as it is no longer 
considered to be an emergency need.

Fund Spend
The total fund spend on DCF awards for 2017/18 was £251,541 compared 
with £267,594 for 2016/17. 

The following table shows the fund spend across the year and compares them 
with the previous year. The last two columns show the percentage of spend 
broken down in to resettlement and emergency awards (these are 
predominantly emergency household energy awards). Resettlement and 
emergency awards have seen very little change compared to last year.

Table 2 - Fund spend across the quarters and compares with spend for the 
same period the previous year.

Page 9



4.10

Resettlement Emergency 
Awards

2017/18 62,191 96% 4%
2016/17 62,302 95% 5%
2017/18 64,473 96% 4%
2016/17 69,334 96% 4%
2017/18 58,953 95% 5%
2016/17 72,975 96% 4%
2017/18 65,923 94% 6%
2016/17 62,982 93% 7%
2017/18 251,541 95% 5%
2016/17 267,593 96% 4%

Q4

Q3

Q2

Q1

Quarter / Year Spend

Avg % of spend

Full year

Ward Information
The following table shows the applications submitted to the DCF for 2017/18 
and the successful and refused applications by ward areas. 

Table 3 - applications submitted to the DCF for 2017/18 and the successful 
and refused applications by ward areas. 

Wards Received

Central Rochdale 208 140 (67%) 55 (26%) 4 (2%)
Smallbridge and Firgrove 146 99 (68%) 39 (27%) 3 (2%)
Kingsway 118 83 (70%) 29 (25%) 2 (2%)
Milkstone and Deeplish 106 69 (65%) 31 (29%) 2 (2%)
Balderstone and Kirkholt 101 66 (65%) 28 (28%) 3 (3%)
West Heywood 89 54 (61%) 30 (34%) 2 (2%)
Spotland and Falinge 83 51 (61%) 25 (30%) 2 (2%)
Hopwood Hall 82 56 (68%) 22 (27%) 1 (1%)
North Heywood 78 56 (72%) 15 (19%) 3 (4%)
Castleton 71 42 (59%) 22 (31%) 4 (6%)
West Middleton 64 42 (66%) 18 (28%) 3 (5%)
North Middleton 62 37 (60%) 21 (34%) 2 (3%)
East Middleton 44 24 (55%) 19 (43%) 0 (0%)
Bamford 33 19 (58%) 13 (39%) 0 (0%)
South Middleton 29 19 (66%) 9 (31%) 0 (0%)
Healey 26 15 (58%) 9 (35%) 1 (4%)
Milnrow and Newhey 20 9 (45%) 8 (40%) 2 (10%)
Littleborough Lakeside 7 3 (43%) 4 (57%) 0 (0%)
Wardle and West Littleborough 6 4 (67%) 2 (33%) 0 (0%)
Norden 1 0 (0%) 1 (100%) 0 (0%)
Total 1,374 888 (65%) 400 (29%) 34 (2%)

Successful Refused
Withdrawn, 
cancelled, 
incomplete

Page 10



4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

It is worth noting, if a Ward area has a higher number of applications made by 
verifying partners (applications for resettlement), the quality and quantity of 
information included in the application is likely to result in a successful 
application. Therefore the percentage of successful applications for a Ward 
area may depend on the type of application being made to the scheme.

Equality and Diversity 
The DCF invites applicants to complete an Equality and Diversity Section 
within the application; although this is not a mandatory section of the 
application. From the information gathered from 1,295 applicants, the data 
shows that the fund is mainly accessed by applicants aged between 36 and 
64 (48%). Applicants aged 22 and 35 years old is the next biggest group to 
access support (44%); these figures are almost identical to last year (47% and 
44%). Applications to the scheme from people over the age of 65 years and 
between 16 and 21 years total just 9%.

The fund continues to have a fairly equal split across male and female 
applicants applying to the DCF; 53% female and 47% male, which is 
consistent with the life of the scheme.

Of the 1,295 applicants who have completed the diversity section of the 
application, 796 (61%) were single and 474 (37%) were lone parents; again 
this is comparable to information collected throughout the life of the scheme. 

The Innovation Fund 2017/18 – Community Projects 
The Bond Board, Petrus, Citizens Advice Bureau and The British Legion all 
provide end of year reports to the Council, detailing the project outcomes to 
date. Each report can be found at Appendix 1

Rochdale Food Bank 
3,596 vouchers were presented to Rochdale Food Bank in 2017/18. The 
emergency food packages provided meals for a total of 7,048 residents; 4,687 
adults and 2,361 children. There has been very little change in people 
accessing the food bank compared with 2016/17.

Residents from ‘Central Rochdale’, ‘Milkstone and Deeplish’ and ‘Smallbridge 
and Firgrove’ accessed the food bank more than residents of other areas. 
Benefit delays, benefit changes and low income were the main reasons 
residents gave when accessing the food bank. 

57% of people accessing the food bank were single, with 16% being lone 
parents, 14% families and 11% were couples; the remainder chose ‘other’ on 
the voucher form.

Heywood Food Bank
Heywood Food Bank provided meals for a total of 15,543 people; 9,669 adults 
and 5,874 children. Feeding a total of 960 individuals, 566 adults and 394 
children.

Low income was the main reason residents gave when accessing the food 

Page 11



4.21

bank; 1,464 people stated this as the reason for their need to access 
emergency food, whereas benefit delays accounted for 273 people and 
Homelessness 73 people.

Alternatives Considered
No alternatives have been considered.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.

5.1

5.2

Over the course of 2017/18, the DCF made awards of furniture and white 
goods to the value of £251,541.

A total of £76,657 was grant funded in 2017/18 to community projects and 
food banks. 

The Local Welfare Provision budget for 2018/19 is £350,000 however there is 
also £153,368 in a reserve budget account.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 ended the provision of Community Care Grants 
and Crisis Loans for living expenses under the Discretionary Social Fund 
administered by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). In April 2013 
the Council took over responsibility for administering a local welfare provision 
scheme from the Department of Works and Pensions. The Council was given 
funds to administer a scheme which met the acute needs of the most 
vulnerable members of the community. There was no statutory duty requiring 
LA’s to deliver a scheme but the Council considered it to be in the best 
interests of the residents of the Borough to operate a scheme. As a result of 
the reduction in funding the Council administered a scheme in a way that 
ensures the funding provides support to our most vulnerable residents.The 
DCF scheme is discretionary.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable as the report is for information only.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. DCF Policy www.rochdale.gov.uk/crisisfund

For Further Information Contact: Helen Bellis, Tel: 01706 924460, 
helen.bellis@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 12

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/crisisfund


Appendix 1 - Innovation Fund 2017/18 Community Projects 

Rochdale Council’s Local Welfare Provision Innovation Fund 

Financial Education Groupwork Report 2017-18

Having been awarded further funding from the Innovation Fund in April 2017,  our 
objectives were to support private-rented sector households in Rochdale to improve their 
well-being by maximising incomes and benefit entitlement, accessing grants, cheaper 
energy tariffs, dealing with disrepair and accessing health services. 

Some of the project’s headline achievements this year include: 

 A significant increase in the number of households attending the workshops and an 
increase in the total financial gain achieved for workshops attendees, via benefit 
take up and debt reduction work.

 The additional provision of a Specialist Welfare Rights Adviser at the workshops 
(the only direct access provision in the Rochdale Borough). Providing early, 
specialist level intervention for benefit issues, representation at appeals and 
tribunals and delivering an additional financial gain for vulnerable households.

 Additional promotion of the service at the landlord forum, resulting in increased 
engagement and referrals to the workshops from local landlords and letting agents 
to support early homelessness prevention work with vulnerable households.

Quid’s In Financial Education Workshops 

We have delivered 25 Workshops since the further funding was awarded, covering topics 
around financial inclusion, budgeting in the private rented sector, money saving apps and 
websites, income maximisation, accessible bank accounts, accessing social housing and 
challenging benefit decisions. All our current sessions are held at St Andrews Church in 
Rochdale at regular fortnightly intervals, to enable service users the opportunity to access 
them even if they change contact details. 

We have increased the provision of direct access to Rochdale Council services at the 
workshops with two advisors from Revenues and Benefits (Housing benefit and Council 
tax) attending every workshop. This has meant service users are able to deal with council 
tax queries and housing benefit issues independently of staff from the Bond Board, thus 
giving them confidence and empowering them in the future.

Page 13



 

Every third workshop, Living Well attends offering blood pressure monitoring, advice re 
accessing GPs and assisting in complaints about health services in the borough. They also 
offer smoking cessation, weight loss help and access to leisure services. Some service 
users who they have identified health problems have gone on to visit their GP and receive 
treatment which has prevented further use of emergency health services.

Councillors Attend Quid’s In 

On the 21st March 2018 three councillors from Rochdale Council came along to see the 
workshop in action. Robert Clegg, Conservative Councillor for Wardle and West 
Littleborough, Shaun O Neill Labour Councillor for Healey and Patricia Sullivan, 
Conservative Councillor for Bamford and Sudden.

They chatted with service users and staff and got an overall picture of what we are 
delivering. Councillors advised that they had received positive responses from attendees.  

Welfare Rights Worker

The Bond Board has been successful in attracting funding from The Big Lottery to provide 
the only direct access, specialist Welfare Rights worker in the Rochdale Borough. 
Recognising the vulnerability and lack of engagement with mainstream services from some 
of our workshop attendees, we took the decision to make this worker available at the 
workshops. This has been a success, with the following number of clients engaging per 
issue;

Number of clients helped by issue dealt with:
Benefit appeals 7
Backdated benefit 4
Benefit Cap 6

Page 14



Benefit check 14
Benefit overpayment 5
Benefit sanction 0
Benefit not in payment 1
Benefit query 3
Support to apply for a benefit 18
Debt support 9
Support to deal with hardship 9
Habitual residence issue 1
Right to reside issue 1
Under occupancy/’Bedroom Tax’ issue 3
Income and capital issues 1
Managing a change of circumstance 1
Mandatory Reconsideration cases 3
Benefit revisions and supersessions 1
Local Welfare Fund applications 1

In the period October 17 to March 18, our Welfare Rights Adviser supported workshop 
attendees to achieve an additional financial gain of £23,504.04 via take-up of additional 
benefit entitlement.

Reaching Private-rented Sector Tenants

We’ve promoted the project to private landlords and letting agents at the Rochdale 
Landlord forum, resulting in an increase of referrals for private tenants whose tenancies 
are at risk of failing and for those have not previously had contact with the Bond Board. 
This approach has enabled us to reach more vulnerable households and increases 
confidence amongst local landlords and letting agents to continue offering accommodation 
to vulnerable households and those claiming benefits.

We are also working in partnership with Rochdale Jobcentre in the development of their 
local “Complex Needs Plan”. The plan aims to provide Job Centre staff with information 
and strategies to ensure vulnerable customers are aware of and accessing appropriate 
support which is available in the Rochdale Borough. The Bond Board will be attending a 
team meeting at the Job Centre to promote the services we offer and to ensure that the 
Quid’s In sessions and the specific needs of vulnerable, private rented sector tenants are 
met.

What are the outcomes for the individuals you have supported with this grant?

We have had 577 individuals attend financial education group-work through this project 
between 3th April 2017 and 31st March 2018.  In addition to the topics covered at the 25 
Workshops, we have completed 431 Financial Health Checks for individuals in private-
rented accommodation.  
  
Since 5th April 2017 the Bond Board have helped 577 private tenants in Rochdale apply 
for a total financial gain of £120,042.91 this equates to an average gain of £208.04 per 
person in this financial year.
 
What have we learned during this grant period that will help us in the future?

Going forward into 2017-18 we anticipated greater results and attendance, and this has 
been the case. At this time last year our attendance was 484 compared to 577 this year.

As the year has gone on and especially since Christmas, our numbers have increased 
each session and we have found that although there are some repeat clients, there is a 
constant demand from new households accessing the service.  We have found that 

Page 15



tenants that receive help from us have either brought along a friend for help or signposted 
them to us and Letting Agents and Private Landlords are tending to refer more and more 
tenants, especially those in crisis. 

In order to better understand the needs and issues of the households attending the Quid’s 
In sessions and how we might develop the service, we undertook two service user 
consultation exercises in 2017/18. This enabled us to discover more about the issues 
causing most problems for attendees, which were; 

 Making ends meet/lack of money
 Debt problems
 Mental and physical health problems
 Lack of confidence
 Lack of qualifications
 Not knowing where to get the help you need

Additional activities that service users are interested in participating in were;

 Specialist debt advice
 Help to get into volunteering
 Social activities e.g. cinema/day trips
 Support or courses to improve I.T/Computer skills
 Life Skills support e.g. confidence building, assertiveness, relaxation
 Talks from other services about what is on offer
 A befriender or volunteer to do things with you such as social activities/attending 

appointments.

As a result of the above feedback, we are planning to bring additional content and services 
to the sessions in 2018/19, with a particular focus on debt and life skills. We will also utilise 
our specialist Welfare Rights Worker to develop preventative, information sessions about 
welfare rights issues, such as the roll out of Universal Credit. 

We also carried out a separate consultation with service users about their levels of digital 
inclusion, being conscious of the full service roll out of Universal Credit and its potential 
impact on vulnerable and financially excluded households. The results showed that many 
service users do not have access to the internet at home and for those who do, access 
was difficult due to, for example, ‘having a cheap phone with no internet access’ and ‘the 
cost of charges for going online’. We also found that service user confidence in their own 
computer skills was low, with many describing their skills as ‘poor’ and most not having an 
email account that they checked every day.

We are therefore in the process of developing our services in 2018/19 to include a new 
drop-in computer room, next to our current offices in Rochdale. This will include 1-1 
support to get online and develop I.T skills, along with education and support with 
Universal Credit and related issues. Our new Volunteer-Co-ordinator will also be involved, 
seeking to recruit service users who are I.T confident to develop their own skills by 
supporting their peers who need additional help to get online and access services digitally. 

Case Study
 
Following the application of the benefit cap in Rochdale, a family from Slovakia 
approached us for assistance at the Quid’s In coffee morning. They had been trafficked 
into Rochdale in September 2013.  In December 2014, police raided the factory where they 
were working and they were assisted by Housing Standards Enforcement Team and 
rehoused in the private rented sector. There are currently 6 adults and three children living 
in a two-bedroomed property. 

The support we have provided to this family via the Quid’s In group has included housing, 
benefits, income maximisation and access to services. We applied to RBH in June 2017 for 

Page 16



rehousing into two households.The head of the household now works 24 hours per week 
so they are no longer subject to the benefit cap.  The Bond Board have assisted with 
claims for income support, child tax credit and child benefit for the eldest daughter and her 
child. We have also assisted with housing benefit, discretionary housing payment for the 
family and ESA for an adult son who has mental health issues. We are also pursuing 
Personal Independence Payment too.  

Current financial gain in benefits for this one family in this financial year = £25,288.12

Page 17



End of year report on Citizens Advice complex Welfare Benefits and Debt Advice for 
people with life changing or long term health conditions Project

Introduction
The complex Welfare Benefits and Debt Advice for people with life changing or long term 
health conditions Project (“the project”) has the stated aim of:

Delivering a free, confidential, impartial and effective debt and benefit information and 
advice service to help people to help themselves to keep independent, safe and well

The bulk of clients referred to the project are from our telephone Advice Line where their 
problem has not been able to be resolved after an initial telephone call. All referred clients 
have a long term or life changing health condition. Where possible, clients are provided 
with information and advice in order to resolve their problem themselves but, if necessary, 
more supportive action is provided either over the phone or, if necessary, face to face.   

Outcomes

Individuals advised

During the year April 2017 to March 2018 the project has advised and supported a total of 
219 individual clients. This exceeds the original target of 150.

 Increase in Household Income 

The project has during the course of the year secured an extra £204,442 in welfare benefit 
entitlements for the clients advised. This figure is an annual amount arrived at by 
multiplying the extra weekly gain in benefit by 52. As the vast majority of clients being 
supported by the project are, as a result of their health problems, unlikely to have a 
significant change in their circumstances, the figure stated is a fairly accurate 
representation of the extra benefit entitlement generated by the project. 
The figure of £204,442 again exceeds the target of £150,000 which was originally set for 
the project. 

Debt rescheduled 

As the demand for assistance with complex welfare benefit matters has far exceeded the 
resources the Bureau has to deal with such cases, the project has prioritised complex 
welfare benefit cases over complex debt cases. Although basic debt advice is occasionally 
provided by the project, the Bureau have a separate in-house debt resource to refer those 
clients requiring specialist debt advice. The in-house debt team has, during the period April 
17 to February 2018 managed to re-schedule or write off £638,433 of debt on behalf of 
clients. 

104/106 Drake Street

ROCHDALE
OL14 1PQ

Adviceline: 0300 330 
1153

Fax: 01706 
758380

www.rochdalecab.org

Page 18



Case Study  - The following case is provided to give an idea of the type of enquiry and its 
outcome that the project has been able to deal with:

Mr C lives with his wife, dependent daughter aged 15 and adult son aged 22, who has a 
learning disability and mental health problems. Mr C worked full time, on minimum wage, 
Mrs C had to give up work to look after their son who was receiving Employment and 
Support Allowance (ESA) of £102.15 per week. They were struggling to make ends meet 
and accrued rent arrears and other debts as a result. They rang our Advice Line and were 
referred to the project for further assistance. 

We were able to advise Mr C that his son had a potential entitlement to Personal 
independence Payment (PIP) and that, if awarded, would be paid on top of his ESA. We 
helped Mr C’s son claim PIP and this resulted in an award of the Daily living Component 
equivalent of £55.65 per week. 

As a result of their son being awarded PIP Mrs C was able to claim Carers Allowance of 
£62.70 per week, backdated to the start of the PIP award. The award of Carers Allowance 
and PIP also had the effect of reducing the family’s liability for Council Tax by 50%. The 
project also assisted Mr C to implement a schedule to repay the rent arrears and other 
debts that had previously built up. Mr C was very grateful for the advice and assistance 
provided and stated that the whole family had benefited both financially and by a reduction 
in their feelings of stress.

Page 19



Volunteer report 

Volunteer report April 2017 – March 2018.

There are many good news stories to share this year. Alongside continuing to support and 
engage volunteers in projects such as PIER (Petrus Incredible Edible Rochdale) who were 
nominated for a RHS award as part of Rochdale in bloom, the Petrus Community store, the 
Petrus Hub and as part of our community facilitator roles across Heywood and Middleton. 
We are also developing new and innovative projects including Petrus Pedals, Hidden 
Rochdale and the Positive vibes night café.

Hidden Rochdale.

Hidden Tales reveals eight personal and inspiring stories of change and survival, told 
through a series of unmissable artworks on display around Rochdale Town Centre.
Each artwork features a poem, portrait and a QR code, linking to a series of powerful short 
films about addiction, mental health, hope and resilience. Stories that will make you cry, 
smile and laugh out loud! 

The eight specially commissioned artworks have been placed around Rochdale town centre 
in the following locations: 
Touchstones Rochdale, Rochdale Town Hall, The Vibe, Rochdale Central Library, The 
Wheatsheaf Shopping Centre, CommuniTea Room, Rochdale Pioneers Museum, The 
Petrus Shop in the Exchange Shopping Centre. 

The project was a huge success in engaging service users, volunteers and the local 
community to take part in the digital trail. Two events as part of the Rochdale festival for 
literature and ideas also allowed participants to showcase their work and recite personal 
poetry in front of a live audience. The ability to share positive stories of change and growth 
had an positive impact on everyone involved and the films are still shared and used to 
challenge misconceptions and judgements about the Petrus community and who we work 
with. 
All 8 films can be viewed at www.hiddenrochdale.co.uk 

Page 20

http://www.hiddenrochdale.co.uk/


        

        

Petrus Pedals.

Petrus Pedals aims to engage people into physical or learning activities through cycling. The 
different arms of the project allow individuals to learn mechanical and maintenance skills in 
our fully equipped workshop or improve their physical and mental wellbeing by attending 
group cycles around the borough. The project has seen great engagement and support and 
is continuing to grow in popularity. The sessions appeal to young people, but also 
accommodates with structured sessions for women only, mixed ages and abilities and those 
with specific health conditions. 

Page 21



The positive Vibes café. 

In partnership with vibe youth and music we are developing a peer led night café for those 
experiencing disadvantage, rough sleeping, mental ill health or social isolation. Petrus are 
working to develop a pool of dedicated volunteers with lived experiences of accessing 
services to deliver this out of hours support. The project is unique to the borough and is 
supported by HMR CCG as an innovative way to address extra burden on emergency 
services and primary health. 

Volunteers offer informal listening support and signposting to other appropriate agencies. 
They facilitate positive engagement in health care and advocate for individuals where 
necessary. They work closely with other agencies and organisations encouraging good 
communication. The night café opens Thursday, Friday and Saturday evenings until 10pm.

Service users and volunteers have also actively contributed to some key events including a 
presentation at the Lowry hotel Manchester as part of the Greater Manchester mayoral 
hustings. A Petrus service user and key volunteer spoke to an audience of over 2000 about 
her experience of homelessness. 

Three volunteers joined me to deliver a presentation to key agencies on the importance of 
positive user engagement and volunteering during an event to promote the homeless 
reduction bill. Volunteers were involved in a ‘dragons den’ pitch to secure CCG funding for 
Petrus pedals. Volunteers have been involved in developing co production frameworks 
alongside other agencies in Manchester. A volunteer for positive vibes café secured a full 
time 6 month contract to work as part of Petrus’ Town centre initiative project working with 
entrenched rough sleepers and beggars in the town. 

We are continuing to develop employment pathways for volunteers at the community store 
and we will continue to share this offer to the wider community as well as working with those 
on universal credit to engage in opportunities that support their journey into employment. We 
will also continue to engage young people into our opportunities and offer training that is 
relevant to the job market as well as working to boost confidence and self-esteem.  

Page 22



RBL PRO 006 (070815)
The Royal British Legion

(ROCHDALE (BR1551) BRANCH)
Registered Charity No:  219279

Patron:  Her Majesty The Queen

‘LIVE ON’
To the Memory of the Fallen and the Future of the Living

President:  Wg Cdr David FORBES DL FILE RAFVR (T)  (Ret’d

********************************************************************************

Report of “Rochdale Veterans breakfast Club” May 2017 to April 2018
The Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club started in June 2016.The club is managed by 
members of the Rochdale Branch of the British Legion in partnership with Rochdale Borough 
Council. In 2016/17 an average of 27 veterans came through the doors each week, and this 
year it has risen to an average of 35.

The Breakfast Club was formed as in informal approach to welfare. A veteran helping a 
veteran approach has reaped many rewards that would not be achievable anywhere else. It 
has been well documented how Rochdale have been one of the lead Boroughs regarding 
the work done under the military covenant umbrella.

Charities & Support Agencies

The Breakfast Club works with all local Armed Forces Charities and various support 
agencies, acts as a central hub bringing together multiple organisations and veterans in a 
single location.

Organisations who have attended

 The Royal British legion
 The Royal British legion Industries
 The Poppy Factory
 SSAFA
 Veterans in Communities

 The Parachute Regimental 
Association

 The Fusilier Association
 The Fusilier recruiting Team
 The MOD

We have an informal approach to educating veterans on support, using word of mouth to 
spread the information about support available. Support agencies will sit down with veterans, 
eat breakfast and network, chatting to veterans, breaking down barriers as veterans see the 
same face each week. Leaflets and handouts are also placed on tables detailing support 
available. 

Veteran will attend because of the camaraderie aspect, where they would not normally 
attend a workshop designed to offer support. The breakfast club breaks down these barriers 
and allows outside organisations to engage. This platform allows a number of agencies 
access on a weekly basis to between 30 and 50 veterans.

Summary

The Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club now forms the backbone of the Rochdale Armed 
Forces family network. For two hours on a Thursday morning veterans, dependants, widows, 
wives, husbands, charitable organisations and the MOD come together and are able to 
benefit from the support it offers. 

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



ROCHDALE COUNCIL’S LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION INNOVATION FUND

Financial Re-Engagement Work    April 2017 to March 2018

The Bond Board specialises in engaging Rochdale PRS residents and the homeless, 
particularly those who have a history of non-engagement with services and who have 
chaotic lifestyles with previous failed tenancies. The Innovation Fund has enabled The Bond 
Board to offer 1-1 re-engagement support to this group of Rochdale residents. This has 
included support to; re-engage and access services, maximise incomes, reduce debts, 
maintain tenancies, prevent homelessness and has enabled service users to become more 
resilient for the future.

Project Outcomes 

169 Vulnerable PRS tenants engaged with the Financial Re-Engagement Work
378 Vulnerable PRS households received information about the full digital roll out of 
Universal Credit and the support available to deal with any problems.
123 Vulnerable PRS tenants with increased awareness of problem-solving strategies and 
effectively engaging with services, enabling them to build resilience and confidence.
57 Vulnerable homeless households supported to move into private rented accommodation.
18 new landlords recruited who are willing to house homeless households claiming benefits.
£351,177 financial gain for service users, including successful claims for Housing Benefit, 
Council Tax Benefits, Discretionary Housing Payments, Personal Independence Payments 
(including backdated awards), Discretionary Crisis Fund awards for emergency energy and 
successful applications to trust funds, e.g. United Utilities Trust Fund and Rochdale United 
Charity.
23 vulnerable PRS households supported with mediation between landlord and tenant to 
prevent homelessness
21 households supported to deal with rent arrears.
13 homeless and vulnerable PRS tenants given emergency food provision in a crisis.

Newsletter
We devised and sent a newsletter to 378 PRS tenants in November 2017. It included advice 
about how to end a tenancy successfully, to minimise the risk of rent arrears, debt or being 
found intentionally homeless. It also included information about the full roll out of Universal 
Credit and advice about what people could do to prepare for this, e.g.  opening bank 
accounts, setting up email accounts, getting online and a reminder about paying Council 
Tax. It gave details of how to access support at The Bond Board. (Copy attached).

The impact of Welfare Reform
The financial gain achieved for service users has increased substantially. This is due to an 
increase in demand for Welfare Rights Advice, particularly around applying for and 
subsequently appealing negative Employment and Support Allowance and Personal 
Independence Payment decisions. The nature of this work has become increasingly more 
complex and time consuming, with support often required for months at a time. This includes 
not only dealing with the welfare rights issue itself, but the knock-on consequences for the 
Service User, such as food and fuel poverty, the impact on mental and physical health and 
the increased risk of homelessness. We envisage this issue becoming ever more apparent 
once the full roll out of Universal Credit gathers momentum.Page 27



Case Studies: (Names have been changed to protect anonymity)

Andrew
Andrew originally self-referred asking for help as he was living in a block of flats which were 
being targeted by local youths and there was lots of anti-social behaviour. We assisted him 
to move into other accommodation, but his health deteriorated and as this was an upstairs 
property we once again assisted him to move. During this time, he applied for Employment 
and Support Allowance (ESA) and Personal Independence Payment(PIP), both were 
refused, and he was helped to appeal both decisions. Both appeals were upheld and 
backdated. He now is in the support group for ESA and has standard rate PIP for both care 
and mobility for the next four years.  

Total Financial Gain:   £38,717.15

Joanna
Joanna was referred to us from the Homeless Team at RBH as she had rent arrears and 
was at risk of eviction, she has four children. There had been problems with her benefits as 
her partner had moved out, but had then returned and they had failed to inform the DWP. 
This caused her housing benefit to be suspended in July 2017. She was also getting regular 
visits from Rossendale Bailiffs for Council Tax debts from a previous address. Joanna was 
not engaging with services and or allowing access. The Early Help Team asked for 
assistance from The Bond Board and home visits were arranged. 

The Bond Board assisted to get housing benefit back in payment and £2,411.17 was paid to 
the landlord to prevent eviction. The Bond Board asked for the recovery action by the bailiffs 
to be put on hold and the debt to be returned to the council to enable Joanna to set up a 
payment plan. 

An application was made and was successful for a fridge freezer from The Buttle trust. A 
further application has been made for basic furniture to Rochdale United Charities who will 
make a decision in early May. 

The Bond Board will also be assisting Joanna with a move as she is currently in a two-
bedroomed property which is inadequate for the family’s needs. She is now engaging well 
with the Bond Board worker on a weekly basis and this will continue until she has resettled 
into a larger property.

Total Financial gain:  £ 3,799.94

 

Page 28



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 28th June 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture, 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration, 
Business, Skills & 
Employment

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document Public

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance 
Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – March 31st 2018) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2017-18.

One action is not fully complete but is within the action date.

Four actions are not fully complete.

62% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 have now 
been completed.

Recommendation

2. To review progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – March 31st 2018) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2017-18.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The committee previously approved the Directorate Plan for 2017-18 for the 
Economy Directorate.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



The Quarter 4 progress report for the Neighbourhoods Directorate is attached 
at Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18 Progress

Performance Overview

62% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 have now 
been completed.  The chart below shows the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4. 

The one action that is not fully complete but are within the action date (Purple) 
relates to:
 Improve accessibility through Northern Gateway scheme, J19 Link 

Road and Gateways

Page 30



4.4

4.5

4.6

The four actions that is not fully complete (Amber) relate to:
 Support the Community Safety Partnership to improve community 

safety in the borough
 Support delivery of housing target
 Improve recycling
 Implement customer improvement action plan including delivery of the 

Connected Council Programme phase 2 to enhance customer 
experience

Performance Issues

Please refer to appendices in regards to incomplete actions. Narrative should 
highlight any revised completion dates

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary

5.   None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2017-18

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen,  
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 31



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

   

 

N17013 Develop Rochdale asks in relation to GM devolution and ensure 
effective communication around maximisation of opportunities 

 31 December 2017   

Objectives: Increased awareness and influence of devolution across Council  

 A Policy Adviser role is now in place who is responsible for co-ordinating the Council’s work at a Greater Manchester level. Support is provided 
to the Chief Executive on Greater Manchester issues. The Policy Adviser prepares monthly updates on GM issues and is reviewing meetings in 
which the Council is involved.  

11/04/18 

 

 

 

N17001 Support the Community Safety Partnership to improve 
community safety in the borough 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Commission services for Domestic Violence and Victim Support (KPI’s TBC)....Disrupt of organised crime and modern slavery....Increase 
participation in anti-social behaviour risk assessment conference (ASBRAC) process....Implementation of recommendations from domestic homicide 
reviews....Addressing issues through allocation of Police and Crime Commissioner funding....Establish new Public Realm Team to include:..Public Realm 
Officers..Town Centre Wardens..HIT Team....Significant increases in FPN’s.. 

 

A strategic assessment to determine priorities and key themes are underway will be completed into Quarter 2 of 2018/19, due to capacity issues. 
This will assist the Council, Police and partners in developing the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Plan for the next 3 years. 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

N17002 Safeguard and protect vulnerable people and improve 
community cohesion 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Percentage of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well together in their local area (baseline TBC when q4 16/17 figures 
available)....Reduce incidents of Domestic Abuse per 1,000 residents....Increase the number of homelessness  preventions compared to 16-17 ....Average 
length of stay of homelessness households in B&B for less than 2 weeks (stat figure 6 weeks) .. 

 

The Council continues to undertake daily tension monitoring, resulting in weekly reports. The Council works closely with a range of groups and 
community organisations to develop activities which promote community resilience, engagement, cohesion and counter extremism. Significant 
work has been undertaken to support Greater Manchester authorities in the regional Channel Peer Reviews as well as recovery work following 
the Manchester bombing and consultation on the GM Mayors Cohesion Commission. ....The Council has completed its work with the Foundation 
for Peace to develop stronger communities through holding difficult conversations and has begun working on another project with the 
organisation RECLAIM in Rochdale Borough which looks at developing stronger Youth Leadership and Mentoring opportunities. Work is 
underway in partnership with Government departments to engage with the communities on the Integration Strategy. 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

N17003 Support delivery of housing target  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Regeneration of 3 infill/ brownfield sites in urban areas....64 affordable homes built by year end....Increase no. Empty Homes brought back into use 
as a direct result of intervention by the Empty Property team compared to 16-17 – target 675 in 2017/18... 

 

Regenda are now on site on Ramsay Terrace and progressing well...Wellfield surgery site is at the planning stage...Work is progressing on 
Willow Park...Sudden Brook site will be marketed in the near future ....Boots - Site nearing completion ..Newbold - Site nearing completion....The 
Strand - Site nearing completion....The overall trend continues to be a decrease in the number of long term empty properties. There are currently 

13/04/18 

 

P
age 32



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

852 long term empty properties across the borough. Efforts continue to engage the owner of every empty property. Various forms of enforcement 
action are underway on 46 empty properties and their owners. 1326 owners of empty properties have been contacted during the year, from which 
747 properties have been brought back into use as a direct result of intervention by the Empty Property Team.. 

 

 

 

N17004 Improve recycling   31 March 2018   

Objectives: Increase in amount of waste being recycled to achieve a 50% IAA recycling rate....Reduction in amount of waste going to landfill by 681 tonnes or 
1.9%.... 

 

The recycling figure for quarter 2 July to September (which are the latest figures available) Including waste from Street cleaning, Fly tipping, 
Bulky waste and Parks and Grounds maintenance show a 2nd Quarter  Recycling figure of 50.3% ..The same figure for 2016-17 Quarter 2 
showed a recycling figure of 50.9%.. 

10/04/18 

 

 

 

N17005 Sustain our parks and access to the countryside  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Maintain current Green Flag status and Increase in number of  parks of ‘Green Flag standard from eight to nine  

Work continues on Green flag submissions which are submitted annually by the end of January. 2 additional sites are to be submitted for 2018 
those being Denehurst Park & Middleton Memorial Gardens The Green Flag award is an annual process which will judged again in Q2 2019 

10/04/18 

 

 

 

N17006 Improve the cleanliness of our Streets and Open spaces  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Increase in the numbers of Official Green Volunteers from 82 to 100 ....The percentage of land at an acceptable standard...Target  90%....  

The Green Volunteer Data Base has received its annual review to remove inactive members. ..The current number of active volunteers is now 
76...The percentage of land at an acceptable standard for Q3 was 95 %   .. 

10/04/18 

 

 

 

N17007 Improve accessibility through Northern Gateway scheme, J19 
Link Road and Gateways 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Highways feasibility work completed to support Northern Gateway scheme....Design of J19 Link Road completed and ready for procurement and 
delivery by end 2021....Key Gateways improved throughout the Borough... 

 

NPIF bid was unsuccessful however the work to unlock the Northern Gateway continues through the South Heywood Link Road and bringing 
developable land forward.......Conditional Planning approval has been granted for J19 and the scheme is now being submitted to the Secretary of 
State for their consideration. Discussions now taking place to determine preferred procurement route....All gateways being improved as per 
requirements.. 

13/04/18 

 

 

 

N17008 Keep our roads in good condition and clean  31 March 2018   

Objectives: Deliver programme of flood resilience works and develop further flood resilience plans....Deliver annual Highways Capital  

P
age 33



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

programme....Achieve/maintain a level 3 rating for the ‘DfT Incentive Funding Assessment ....More of our streets and public areas to be of a good standard –
..Reduction in % of the Boroughs classified roads where maintenance should be considered.. 

Flood resilience works are being undertaken in accordance with the three year programme; we also continue to receive and investigate flooding 
complaints across the Borough with works ordered to help alleviate on an ad-hoc basis. The highways capital programme for 17/18 is 
complete...We have completed and submitted our assessment to the DfT. The results of our assessment are that we have maintained our level 3 
status.....The percentage of Highways at an acceptable standard of cleanliness for Q4 was 95 %   ..The highway network condition continues to 
be good and in accordance with national criteria. A two year programme of planned works is prepared and approved to ensure we continue to 
see a further improvement, particularly the unclassified network. We are also in the process of planning the £12m additional Leader Investment to 
deliver over the next 2-3 years... 

13/04/18 

The percentage of Highways at an acceptable standard of cleanliness for Q4 was 95 %    10/04/18 
 

 

 

N17009 Implement customer improvement action plan including 
delivery of the Connected Council Programme phase 2 to enhance 
customer experience 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Percentage of customers satisfied with Council services (baseline data to be made available via Residents Survey)....Percentage of customers 
satisfied with quality of call handled by contact centre....Percentage of customers satisfied that the contact centre adviser was helpful and attentive.. 

 

Over 13,000 registrations have been made through MyAccount and we are expecting further increases. Council Tax eBilling and online business 
rates were successfully made live in MyAccount. Work has been completed is underway to develop further online functionality. ....The Contact 
Centre continues to perform to high standard, meeting all KPIs and customer satisfaction scores consistently above 98%. ....Work is underway 
with Customer Services and Libraries team on staff training, processes and purpose to further improve the Council’s face-to-face offer. ....The 
Council was shortlisted as Digital Council of the Year in the 2018 LGC Awards and has received a similar nomination for the Municipal Journal 
Awards... 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

N17010 Roll out place-based Public Service Reform initiatives to 
improve outcomes for residents in our high demand neighbourhoods 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Reduced volume of high level/ high cost responses....Numbers of people engaged in College Bank..Numbers of people engaged in Lower Falinge 
programme....Numbers of people engaged in Kirkholt programme....Increased employment from within the cohort....Increased skills levels from within the 
cohort....Improved wellbeing from within the cohort.. 

 

Integrated Place Teams are operating in Kirkholt, College Bank and Lower Falinge.  The Kirkholt Team is continuing to achieve reductions in 
demand for crisis services and other positive outcomes.  The team in College Bank and Lower Falinge is working as a GM early adopter for 
public service reform.  The integrated teams (comprising council staff, GMP officers, housing, health, community and voluntary sector and 
volunteers) are working intensively with around 400 people.  Cost benefit analysis has been undertaken and for every £1 spent a return of £4.13 
has been returned through this work. 

13/04/18 

 

 

 

N17012 Launch new three-year communications strategy and 2017-18 
plan in support of themes of:  Jobs / employment, Place tourism & 

 31 March 2018   

P
age 34



  

 

       

   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017-18  
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  4 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

Childhood obesity 

Objectives: To confirm baseline information from Perception Survey. ....Increased media coverage and social media audiences and engagement....Increase 
number of schools who gain the GM healthy eating award and are contributing to reducing child obesity. .. 

 

The Council’s Communications Plan has delivered a wide range of positive events and promotions completed. The priority themes were around 
economic growth, tourism, Place and childhood obesity. A range of targeted events have taken place on childhood obesity linked to a range of 
other activity, including the rolling out of healthier school meals in line with Government targets. ..A 3 year strategy has been agreed and 
communications priorities for 2018/19 will be agreed following the elections. 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

N17011 Roll out staff recognition programme  30 November 2017   

Objectives: Numbers nominations....Maximised sponsorship..  

Following the great success of the 2017 ACE Staff Awards 2017, planning is beginning on the awards for 2018. Initial publicity on this will begin 
in May, with nominations live between June and the end of August.  Many of the existing sponsors have confirmed that they will continue to 
support the awards ceremony that is due to take place on 29th November 2018. .. 

11/04/18 

 

 

 
 

   

 

P
age 35



Neighbourhoods

Directorate Plan 2018/19

P
age 36



1

Introduction

This 2018 - 2019 plan supports the borough vision to ‘grow our economy and develop our borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities.’ (Place Plan 2016 - 2021). It outlines what action the Neighbourhoods Directorate 
will take over the coming year, to support achievement of corporate objectives.

The Rochdale Way

The Rochdale Way sets out the values that are at the heart of how we approach all of the work we do. To help us make these values real 
we have adopted a set of behaviours that every member of staff must demonstrate as well as two specific leadership behaviours.

Valuing 
our 

people

Using time 
& money 

wisely

Working 
together

Always 
learning & 
improving

Acting 
with 

integrity

Focusing 
on 

customer
s

Positive attitude Developing myself Improving things

Achieving my goals Communicating 
effectively

Achieving shared 
goals

Meeting customer 
needs

Encouraging 
colleagues

Empowering & 
Supporting
Managing 

Performance

P
age 37



2

Cooperation

A cooperative is an association of people (members) that work together to meet common economic, social and cultural needs and 
aspirations. Cooperative organisations are guided by a set of values and principles. Cooperative Councils adopt practices that will deliver 
benefits for everyone. 

Cooperative Principles

 Voluntary and open membership - all persons can use the services if they are willing to accept the responsibilities of membership
 Democratic - members actively participate in setting policies and making decisions about the cooperative organisation
 Member economic participation - it is a cooperatives responsibility to give members a good reason to be loyal
 Autonomy and independence - cooperatives are only accountable to members
 Education, training, information - members are given all the information they need to make informed choices
 Concern for the community - profits are used to support local communities and to give back to members
 Cooperation among cooperatives - they work with and support other cooperatives to deliver services to people

Cooperative Values

 Self help - members join together and make a difference
 Self responsibility - every member supports cooperative activities and encourages others to support them too
 Democracy - all members are equal
 Equality - all members have the opportunity to get involved
 Equity - cooperatives are committed to fairness
 Solidarity - members work together to help the cooperative to be strong and successful

Cooperative Council Practices

 Social partnership - work with partners to achieve mutual goals 
 Democratic engagement - engage citizens and encourage participation in their communities through learning and social responsibility 
 Co-production - involve citizens in the design and creation of services 
 Social economy - ensure the local economy includes a diversity of enterprises that work on the basis of reciprocity
 Maximising social value - create additional value when delivering services so that there is a wider community benefit
 Community leadership - ensure that elected members represent their communities and deal with problems in the most effective way
 New models of meeting needs - find new ways of working to support the most vulnerable so as to create resilient communities
 Innovation - continually improve so as to deliver more effective and efficient services
 Learning - draw on good practice and apply learning in the organisation

P
age 38



3

Strategic Aims and Objectives

The Place Plan outlines long-term aims for the borough as agreed by the Council and Partners. The aims are centred around four core 
themes to support achievement of the vision. The Corporate Plan outlines specific objectives for the Council in supporting achievement of 
the vision and aims. 

Theme 1: People Theme 2: Place Theme 3: Prosperity Theme 4: Performance

Aim 1: We will safeguard and 
protect our vulnerable people and 
support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, 
in control and successfully 

managing their lives. We will 
enable communities to thrive and 

develop.

Aim 2: We will create safe, 
resilient,

flourishing and high quality 
places where people choose to 

live, work and invest

Aim 3: We will encourage 
business growth and enterprise; 

increase our skills levels and 
create the conditions for the 
creation of good quality jobs.

Aim 4: We will provide and 
commission a wide range of 
services for local people and 

communities ensuring that they 
meet customer needs and 

expectations, are of high quality 
and provide the best value for 

the resources we use

Objective 1: Children reach a 
good level of development 
cognitively, socially and 
emotionally so that they are ready 
for school 

Objective 5: Individual, people 
and place safety

Objective 9: Businesses investing 
in the borough

Objective 13: Services and 
commissioning activities 
integrated or transformed

Objective 2: Children achieve the 
qualifications they need to 
prepare them for work and a 
prosperous life 

Objective 6: High quality and 
affordable housing

Objective 10: Businesses 
supported to develop and grow

Objective 14: Healthy, motivated 
and resilient workforce with 
empowered staff  

Objective 3: Young people skilled 
and able to gain employment 

Objective 7: Clean environment Objective 11: Access to 
employment opportunities 
enabled

Objective 15: Perception of 
Rochdale is changed

Objective 4: People in our 
borough have a good start and 
are able to live well, age well and 
die well 

Objective 8: Transport links 
enable good movement in and 
out of the borough

Objective 12: Residents 
supported into employment

Objective 16: Rochdale 
benefitting from devolution and 
providing a quality offer to local 
people, investors and 
businesses

P
age 39



4

Equality and Diversity Objective

The Public Sector Equality Duty 2011 places a legal requirement on the Council to demonstrate that it considers the needs of all individuals 
in its day to day work and has due regard for the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. 
The Council has adopted the following single equality objective: 

Objective 17: Promote equality by knowing our diverse community and understanding its changing needs

Corporate Enabling Work Programmes

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. The Corporate Plan 
outlines working practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our 
objectives. 

 Working across organisational boundaries

 Sharing budgets

 Sharing services with other public sector bodies

 Developing a culture of social responsibility

 Encouraging and supporting volunteering

 Looking for ways to save money

 Looking at new models of service delivery

 Making better use of data and intelligence

 Streamlining decision making

 Managing our money

P
age 40



5

Directorate Structure

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below:

Director of Neighbourhoods
Mark Widdup 

Assistant Director of Place
Donna Bowler

Assistant Director - Information, 
Customers & Communities

John Rooney

P
age 41



6

Directorate functions and services

The Directorate has responsibility for a range of service areas and activities.

 Environmental Management
 Highways (including Balfour Beatty)
 Facilities management, Building & Surveying
 Property & Projects
 Street lighting
 Strategic Housing, including RBH
 Corporate Policy, Performance and Improvement (including research & intelligence)
 ICT (Operations & Service Delivery)
 ICT (Business Applications Services)
 Information Governance
 Communications (Marketing, public relations, media relations, digital services)
 Customer Access (Contact Centre and Web)
 Customer Access (Community Access)
 Townships & Libraries
 Neighbourhood Services (Cohesion & Anti-Social Behaviour)
 Coroners and Registrars
 Emergency planning 

Cabinet members with relevant portfolio holder responsibilities oversee Council Directorates

 Cllr Neil Emmott – Cabinet Member for Housing & Environment
 Cllr Allan Brett – Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Corporate & Resources
 Cllr Janet Emsley – Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community & Culture

P
age 42



7

Directorate Responsibilities

The directorate has the following responsibilities:

 Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services
 Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people
 Maintain and develop the asset portfolio for infrastructure of roads and bridges in the borough
 Work with partners to make the borough a safer place
 Promote the borough as a good place to live, work, invest and visit
 Manage information and business intelligence to support decision-making and policy development
 Streamline business processes and modernise customer access
 Implement Place-based Public Service Reform across the borough to improve outcomes for residents

Key Documents

The directorate works in accordance with the following strategies and plans:

 Place Plan
 Corporate Plan
 Safer Communities Strategy
 Asset Strategy
 Housing Strategy
 Homelessness Strategy
 GM Strategy
 Waste Management Strategy

P
age 43



8

Directorate Actions and Deliverables

The table outlines actions and deliverables required to support achievement of corporate objectives

Ref Directorate Action Action 
owner

Service Deliverables By when Service 
Lead 

Link to 
Corporate 
Plan Priority

Progress 
Monitoring 

Agree priorities following strategic  
threat assessment

May 2018

Establish priority sub groups June 2018

NDP01 Work with partners to 
determine priorities 
and deliver strategy 
for reducing crime 
and disorder 

John 
Rooney

Develop new community safety 
plan

October 
2018

Mark Dalzell 5. Individual, 
people and 
place safety

Report 
outcomes to 
Rochdale 
Safer 
Communities 
Partnership 
Board & O&S

Completion of review on 
community conflict work by 
Foundations for Peace 

July 2018

Develop and commence 
implementation of Action Plan 
incorporating recommendations 
from GM reviews post 
Manchester Arena attack

October 
2018

NDP 2 Prevent and minimise 
the risk of  tensions to 
support a more 
cohesive and 
integrated community

John 
Rooney

Lead and complete review for 
Greater Manchester to develop a 
sub-regional model to manage 
risk and  community tensions on 
critical and major incidents

January 
2019

Sajjad Miah 5. Individual, 
people and 
place safety

Report 
outcomes to 
Rochdale 
Safer 
Communities 
Partnership 
Board & O&S. 

Resident 
Survey

Establish Business As Usual 
teams in Rochdale

April 2018NDP3 Implement integrated 
place based teams to 
deliver fiscal and 
wider benefits 

John 
Rooney

Report annual outcomes in 
Rochdale teams (Kirkholt, Lower 
Falinge/ College Bank) and 
Heywood

March 2019

Helen 
Chicot

13. Services & 
commissioning 
activities 
integrated & 
transformed

Report 
progress to 
O&S & PSR 
Steering 
Group on 
decreased 

P
age 44



9

Establish new team in Heywood August 
2018

demand, 
positive 
outcomes and 
cost benefit

Establish a Public Service 
Reform Steering Group

July 2018NDP4 Agree plan for 
embedding Public 
Service Reform 
across the borough 

John 
Rooney

Plan agreed for future roll out of 
PSR across borough

Dec 2018

John 
Rooney

13. Services & 
commissioning 
activities 
integrated & 
transformed

Report 
outcomes to 
Partnership 
Board & O&S

Plan in place for maximising take 
up of MyAccount for residents 
and businesses  

May 2018NDP5 Work in partnership 
to develop and 
deliver Rochdale’s 
digital future

John 
Rooney

Agree boroughwide Digital 
strategy

Oct 2018

Mark Jones 13. Services & 
commissioning 
activities 
integrated & 
transformed

PI - % of 
residents

Work with internal stakeholders to 
determine communication 
priorities for 2018/19

June 2018

 Start implementation of new 
communications strategy, 
including refresh of related 
policies.

June 2018

NDP6 Raise awareness, 
increase reach, 
facilitate engagement 
and encourage 
behaviour change to 
help in promoting the 
borough of Rochdale 
as a desirable place 
to live, work and do 
business.

John 
Rooney

Assist Council in establishing new 
partnership models (LCO)

Dec 2018

Danny 
Brierley

15. Negative 
perceptions of 
the borough 
are 
challenged, 
residents are 
better informed 
about the work 
of the council 
and its 
staff/members

Delivery of 
communication
s priorities, 
positive media 
coverage, 
social media 
sentiment.

Establish a Strategic Board to 
drive partnership and cooperative 
agendas

June 2018NDP7 Work in partnership 
to determine vision 
and priorities to offer 
strategic direction for 
the Borough and the 
Council

John 
Rooney

Review Corporate Plan March 2019

Caroline 
Wolfenden

15. Perception 
of Rochdale is 
changed

Refresh of 
Place Plan 
with Strategic 
Board

NDP8 Increase number of 
homelessness 
preventions 

Donna 
Bowler

Work with colleagues across the 
AGMA region to build a combined 
response to the duties within the 
Homeless Reduction Act (HRA). 
Creation of a common database

August 
2018

Ian Jolley 4. People in 
our borough 
have a good 
start and are 
able to live 

Report to 
Homelessness 
Board

P
age 45



10

Work with existing 3rd sector 
partners to maximise preventions 
Partners include Petrus, 
Brentwood, Sanctuary Trust, 
Stepping Stones etc.

March 2019

Implementation of HRA 
requirements

March 2019

well, age well 
and die well 

Review current policy and 
scheme.

April 2018

Design and develop fit for 
purpose policy and scheme.

May – June 
2018

Commission RBH to deliver and 
manage scheme.

July 2018

Project manage implementation 
of the new scheme.

July – 
August 
2018

NDP9 Ensure the Council’s 
Housing Allocations 
Policy and Scheme 
meets statutory 
requirements and 
makes the maximises 
the use of housing 
stock in the borough

Donna 
Bowler

Review housing outcomes and 
amend policy if required.

Jan 2019

Helen Bellis 6: High quality 
and affordable 
housing

Report 
progress to 
O&S

Continue to work with owners of 
empty properties to promote tools 
to bring properties back into use

October 
2018

Use enforcement powers, where 
appropriate, to bring empty 
properties back into use

October 
2018

NDP10 Increase number of 
empty homes being 
brought back into use

Donna 
Bowler

Work with property owners, 
estate agents and investors to 
prevent properties reaching 6 
months empty

March 2019

Peter 
Maynard

6: High quality 
and affordable 
housing

Report 
progress to 
O&S

Create a priority list of 10 
properties and sites to be 
considered for CPO

April 2018

Make offers to purchase by 
negotiation 10 priority properties 
and sites

June 2018

NDP11 Deliver successful 
CPO Programme

Donna 
Bowler

Submit CPO reports to Cabinet 
for 10 priority properties and sites

July 2018

Peter 
Maynard

7: Clean 
environment & 
15. Perception 
of Rochdale is 
changed

Report 
progress to 
Township 
Regeneration 
Panels
Reports to 
Cabinet and 
Township as 

P
age 46



11

Submit CPOs for 10 priority 
properties and sites to Secretary 
of State

Sept 2018 required to 
implement 
CPOs

Deliver a number of Food waste 
initiatives

March 2019 Service 
Manager 
Support

Increase Open space 
maintenance recycling

March 2019 Service 
Manager 
Operations

NDP12 Increase in the 
amount of waste 
being recycled to 
achieve an annual  
50% recycling rate

Donna 
Bowler

Implement a non-recyclable 
waste reduction strategy

March 2019 Head of 
Service EM

7. Clean 
environment

Report 
progress to 
O&S

Strategies and 
policies to 
Cabinet 

Targeted campaigns programme 
by area

June 2018

Programme of publicity to further 
reduce contaminations

June 2018

NDP13 Improve the 
cleanliness of our 
streets and open 
spaces and public 
realm

Donna 
Bowler

Targeted grot spot education and 
enforcement programme

March 2019

Service 
Manager 
Support

7. Clean 
environment

Report 
progress to 
O&S

Strategies and 
policies to 
Cabinet 

Engage preferred contractor in 
pre-construction activities

July 2018NDP14 Deliver J19 Link 
Road

Donna 
Bowler

Construction commencement March 2019

Senior 
Highways 
Officer

8. Transport 
links enable 
good 
movement in 
and out of the 
borough

Deliver flood resilience (£500k 
high risk flood sites, £300k gully 
replacement programme)

March 2019

Deliver carriageway improvement 
schemes and maintain level 3 
rating IFA (value £1,385k)

March 2019

NDP15 Deliver highways 
capital programme 
and additional 
investment 

Donna 
Bowler

Deliver footway improvement 
programme (value £143K)

March 2019

Team 
Leader 
Capital 
Programme 
& Delivery

8. Transport 
links enable 
good 
movement in 
and out of the 
borough

All works to be 
programmed 
by the Capital 
Programme & 
Delivery Team 
Leader and 
progress 
reviewed at 
monthly 
intervals

P
age 47



12

Ensure devolved housing 
association investment 
programme monies are available 
in Rochdale

Review
Sept 2018

Helen Bellis

Work with housing associations 
to agree the build programme 
and ensure that it meets local 
need and the council’s priorities

Review
Sept 2018

Ruth 
Worden

NDP16 Maximise housing 
offer opportunities 
presented by 
devolution 

Engage with developers receiving 
HCA grant monies to ensure they 
are aware of opportunities in 
Rochdale

Review
Sept 2018

Donna 
Bowler/ 
Mark 
Roberts/ 
Robert Scott

16. Rochdale 
benefitting 
from 
devolution and 
providing a 
quality offer to 
local people, 
investors and 
businesses

Implementation of provisions for 
enforcement of the interim 
Traveller injunction preventing 
unauthorised encampments

29/3/2018

Prepare case for full injunction to 
prevent unauthorised 
encampments hearing at the High 
Court in London

confidential

Enforcement of the interim 
injunction to prevent unauthorised 
traveller encampments

31/3/2019

Peter 
Maynard

Enforcement action taken under 
Rochdale Town Centre - PSPO’s

31/3/2019

NDP17 Increase 
Enforcement Activity

Increase enforcement activity for 
littering and dog fouling through 
engagement of a private 
contractor.

Dec 2018

Martin 
Taylor

5. Individual, 
people and 
place safety & 
15. Perception 
of Rochdale is 
changed

Link with 
comms 
strategy and 
behaviour 
change

P
age 48



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 28th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Blundell 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document Public 

Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – March 31st 2018) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2017-18

40% (4) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 have now 
been completed.

Six actions are not fully complete but are within the action target date

Recommendation

2. To review progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – March 31st 2018) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2017-18.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The committee previously approved the Directorate Plan for 2017-18 for the 
Economy Directorate.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 4 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at 
Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

Appendix 2 provides information on the Q3 performance of Rochdale 
Development Agency

Appendix 3 is an infographic dashboard showing data from the economy 
directorate

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 Progress

Performance Overview

40% (4) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2017-18 have now 
been completed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4. 

The six actions that are not fully complete but are within the action target date 
(Purple) relate to:
 Increase the land brought forward for residential & employment 

development (Council and private sector land).
 Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and revenue).
 Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council assets portfolio 

and make it fit for purpose and sustainable.
 Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural environment.
 Secure tangible benefit to the Borough from GM 

Strategies/policies/funding.

Page 50



4.4

 Deliver high quality, effective services that exceed Council and national 
targets.

Quarter 4 Summary

Following the grant of planning permission in June 2018, a contractor, Wilmott 
Dixon was appointed and funding secured for the Rochdale Riverside 
scheme.  The development has commenced on site in March 2018. 
Completion of the scheme is scheduled for Spring 2020.  

The latest borough employment rate is 67.4% of the working age population 
which is 3.1% higher that the target set for March 2018 of 64.3%.  The 
borough’s employment rate is at its highest rate for the last 9 years. 
Unemployment is at the lowest level for 12 years. 

54 new enquiries received in Quarter 4 with 24 project successes in 2017/18 
(creating 357 new jobs and safeguarding 350 jobs).  

Overall, during 2017/18, the Council supported 3,964 residents with improved 
employability, supported 1,060 unemployed residents to obtain qualifications 
and assisted 564 people into employment over the last 12 months.  

During the 2017/18 year, 8 new inward investors were assisted to move into 
the Borough and 16 existing business were helped to expand/relocate.  In 
total, 363 new jobs were created and 357 jobs safeguarded.  Overall, the 
Directorate supported around £32.6m private sector investment into the 
Borough generating £1.24m in business rates growth.  

During 2017/18, in excess of 500 new homes were constructed across the 
Borough on both Council and private sites.  

In total 48,730m2 of new employment floor space was constructed during 
2017/18, including the extension of JD Sports on Kingsway, with a further 
59,179m2 refurbished across the Borough.  The seven new Council built 
industrial units at Dodgson Street were handed over from the contractor in 
October and fully let.  

The Council resolved that it is minded to grant planning permission for the 
Junction 19 link road in March 2018 subject to the Secretary of State not 
wishing to intervene.

Using its Property Growth Fund, three acquisitions were completed in 
2017/18, bringing in an additional rental income of £1.4m per annum for an 
investment of £20m.

A revised HLF bid for £8.9m submitted for Rochdale Town Hall on 1st 
December 2017 with a decision expected from the Heritage Lottery Fund in 
May 2018.  A successful Heritage Action Zone Bid was submitted to Historic 
England for parts of Rochdale Town Centre.  The HAZ project will launch in 
May 2018 and will be a 5 year project in partnership with £500k funding from 
HE and staff resource. 

Page 51



4.5

4.6

The Council also successfully secured a grant of £136k from Historic England 
(matched by RBC capital funding) to take forward structural interventions to 
secure and weatherproof Hopwood Old Hall to support further re-use. 

Performance Issues

Please refer to appendices in regards to incomplete actions. Narrative should 
highlight any revised completion dates

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Appendix 1 -  Economy 
Directorate Plan 2017-18

Appendix 2 - RDA Performance 
Report

Appendix 3 - Economy 
Infographics Document

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 52



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

   

 

 E17006 Improve the Borough’s Town Centre’s and especially begin 
construction of Rochdale Riverside. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure planning consent for Rochdale Riverside scheme....Commence construction of Rochdale Riverside scheme....New outdoor market 
operational in Rochdale town centre....Town Centre Residential Strategies agreed for Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale....3 year Rochdale Town Centre Action 
Plan agreed... 

 

Following the grant of planning permission in June 2018, a contractor, Wilmott Dixon was appointed and funding secured for the Rochdale 
Riverside scheme.  The development has commenced on site IN March 2018. Completion of the scheme is scheduled for Spring 2020.   

 
Heads of terms for the lease for the indoor market food hall and license to occupy the indoor market were agreed.  The former Santander building 
in Rochdale town centre is being fitted out with the market operator and contractor on site carrying out works.  A temporary outdoor market site is 
operating from lower Yorkshire Street three days a week.  The new outdoor market is expected to complete in Summer 2018. 
 
Following an unsuccessful bid to the Housing Infrastructure Fund for Rochdale town centre, Rochdale was selected as one of the Greater 
Manchester towns for the Mayor’s Town Centres Challenge.   A stakeholder event to launch the Rochdale challenge with the GM Mayor took 
place on 23

rd
 March 2018.  Work is now taking place to develop a Residential Strategy for Rochdale town centre and to identify a funding and 

infrastructure delivery plan with the GMCA to bring forward residential sites within  and around Rochdale town centre.  A support package agreed 
with owner of 1 Drake Street to create 9 residential units on upper floors which will bring this listed building back in to use. Ongoing negotiations 
with developer to deliver a residential scheme on the former Iveson’s site, Drake Street.   
 
Residential Masterplans are being prepared for Heywood and Middleton town centres.   
 
To encourage a reduction in vacant premises, the Council’s Business rate relief scheme was rolled out to Heywood and Middleton Town 
Centres.  A total of 46 enquires were received during 2017/18, 36 for Rochdale, 4 for Heywood and 6 for Middleton.  6 approvals were made in 
Rochdale, 1 in Heywood with further approvals pending for 2018/19.  No applications were received for Middleton which typically has fewer 
vacant units.   
 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

E17001 Increase the number of local people into employment (and 
increase employment rate in the Borough)  

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Influence the number of people claiming out of work benefit through: ..1)    Minimum of 380 people accessing employment through Employment 
Links and.. Working Well contracts...2)    100% take up of RBC apprenticeship progression and HGV training schemes..3)    Minimum of 20 front line council and 
partner staff trained to offer first stage jobs and skills support in community venues..Attracting new businesses by developing Council units – minimum 5 per 
annum..Minimum 350 jobs created through RDA support........ 

 

The latest borough employment rate is 67.4% of the working age population which is 3.1% higher that the target set for March 2018 of 64.3%..  
The borough’s employment rate is at its highest rate for the last 9 years. Unemployment is at the lowest level for 12 years.  The number of 
borough resident’s jobs classed as ‘managers, directors and senior officials’ (8,200) is the highest for 6 years.  
 
In comparison with other Greater Manchester authorities, Rochdale has the second lowest employment rate after Manchester and the third 
highest unemployment rate after Manchester and Oldham...Quarter 4 local activity to help improve the employment rates includes providing 
council support to one inward investor creating 11 new jobs, continued employer engagement to match local people to jobs both from the 

11/04/18 

 

P
age 53



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

Council’s Employment Links team and the GMCA’s Working Well Programme which is assisting borough residents with health condit ions into 
work. The implementation of the Council’s Local Positive Recruitment Policy is underway and supports this performance measure.  54 new 
enquiries received in Quarter 4 with 24 project successes in 2017/18 (creating 357 new jobs and safeguarding 350 jobs).   
 
Overall, during 2017/18, the Council supported 3,964 residents with improved employability, supported 1,060 unemployed residents to obtain 
qualifications and assisted 564 people into employment over the last 12 months.   
 
Skill levels are still challenging but the percentage of borough residents with at least a Level 2 qualifications has increased significantly and at a 
faster rate than either the regional or national average.  

 

 

 

E17002 Increase the value of inward investment and indigenous 
business growth. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Support local business growth and promote inward investment through a targeted marketing campaign..Generate 20 leads aimed towards Target 
Sectors....Co-deliver a portfolio of target companies across the Borough for an Account Management strategy for Local Businesses – target 50 
businesses....Consult with 200 businesses per annum through Place Board Ambassadors scheme/Deliver minimum 4 events per annum....£23m of private 
sector investment generated by assisted projects.... 

 

During 2017/18, The Council awarded grants to businesses to support inward investment or business expansion/relocation totalling over 
£500,000.  These projects are expected to generate an additional 300 jobs into the Borough. 
 
During the 2017/18 year,  8 new inward investors were assisted to move into the Borough and 16 existing business were helped to 
expand/relocate.  In total, 363 new jobs were created and 357 jobs safeguarded.  Overall, the Directorate supported around £32.6m private 
sector investment into the Borough generating £1.24m in business rates growth.   
 
Of note: 

a)  The JD Sports extension which was completed in February for internal fit-out. Employment numbers are expected to peak at 3000 in 
autumn 18. 
b) Cleland McIver, a manufacturing company from Littleborough who purchased one of the new Plot K units on Kingsway which is in 
addition to their existing facility and are creating 30 new jobs 

Council co-investment with EU funding for the dedicated Business Growth adviser has continued this year and 65 borough companies have 
received support to improve their productivity, enter new markets and grow. 

 
Plans to create sector propositions and sector-based marketing material have not progressed this year due to a lack of marketing resource and 
will be delivered in 18/19. 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

E17003 Increase the land brought forward for residential & employment 
development (Council and private sector land). 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Consult on Draft Site Allocations Plan Document....Secure planning consent for J19 link road....Secure detailed planning consents for significant 
brownfield sites e.g. Akzo Nobel, British Vita....Bring forward Council sites for disposal or regeneration e.g. Dodgson Street, Former HMR sites....Promote the 
Borough’s portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial sites for reoccupation, refurbishment by:....(1) Securing the reoccupation of former 

 

P
age 54



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

ALDI and Tesco units on Stakehill..(2) Target of 2 new build units developed on Kingsway... 

Work has progressed on a Draft Site Allocations Plan for consultation during the Summer of 2018. This will identify land to meet the Borough 
housing and employment needs over the period until 2028. The Council is also continuing to support the GMCA in the preparation of the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) with a revised plan due for consultation during the summer of 2018. 
 
During 2017/18, in excess of 500 new homes were constructed across the Borough on both Council and private sites.  Development commenced 
on the former Hilltop School and Balderstone School sites (Gleeson), and a further 4 planning applications for a total of 244 units will be 
submitted for planning permission in Spring 2018.  Following market interest, the Council is seeking to market additional sites on Langley for 
further residential development in Spring 2018. The HCA purchased the former Akzo Nobel site and an application to vary the original consent to 
facilitate implementation of the permission was granted in January.  
 
In total 48,730m2 of new employment floorspace was constructed during 2017/18 with a further 59,179m2 refurbished across the Borough.  The 
seven new Council built industrial units at Dodgson Street were handed over from the contractor in October and fully let.  The Council has 
contracted to procure 11 units at Plot D Kingsway Business Park. Construction should be completed by March 2019.  Plans are progressing for 
the self-development of further industrial units at the former Bradfearns site on Oldham Road. Two sites in Heywood are at an early stage of 
consideration with a possibility of building or acquiring additional industrial units.   
 
Three properties were refurbished at Stakehill; units previously occupied by Culina and Aldi.  All of these now have new occupiers. Rochdale 
Central was bought by PIN in Quarter 1 and has had 2 buildings refurbished. Five properties have been refurbished at Stakehill; units previously 
occupied by Tesco, Culina, Sainsbury and Aldi 2 units. 3 of these now have new occupiers. The 600,000 ft2 extension of JD Sports at Kingsway 
was externally completed in early 2018 and will be fully operational by Autumn 2018.   
 
The Council resolved that it is minded to grant planning permission for the Junction 19 link road in March 2018 subject to the Secretary of State 
not wishing to intervene. The Council was unsuccessful with bids to the Housing Infrastructure Fund for the British Vita, Middleton and for a 
collection of sites within and around Rochdale Town Centre. Working with landowners, further funding opportunities are being explored to assist 
in bringing these sites forward for development 
 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

E17004 Maximise income generation for the Council (capital and 
revenue). 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure 2% growth in overall rental levels by proactive management of Council assets....Minimum of 15 Council assets brought to auction....Identify 
Council assets for disposal to generate capital receipts....Deliver the savings targets by investment in property through the Commercial Investment Fund....Apply 
20% fee increase for processing planning applications ....Achieve 5% increase in Building Control income....Secure additional £1m Business Rate payable 
growth through RDA assisted projects... 

 

In January 2018, a long mooted 20% uplift to the national planning fees regime came into force. This applies to all types of planning applications 
submitted to the Council. It is a requirement that any additional income generated from this fee uplift be used to support economic growth in the 
Borough.  Budget Council agreed to increase a number of Discretionary Fees and Charges applicable to the Directorate.  Members also agreed 
to increase pre-planning application charges as a move towards greater cost recovery in this area.   Cabinet has agreed the delegation of new 
charges for Planning Performance Agreements to the Assistant Director and Head of Planning Services. PPAs allow the LPA to secure additional 
fee income through discretionary charges to assist with cost recovery associated with individual planning proposals.  
 

11/04/18 

P
age 55



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

Fee income from Planning and Building Control applications fell during 2017/18 compared to 2016/17.  This can be attributed to a delay in 
submission of a small number of major planning applications.  In Q4, Building Control successfully won the contract to carry out building 
inspections for the Rochdale Riverside scheme. 
 
Using its Property Growth Fund, three acquisitions have been completed in 2017/18, bringing in an additional rental income of £1.4m for an 
investment of £20m. Two further acquisitions expected to cost £16m and generate an annual income of £1.29m are subject to due diligence with 
a view to seeking member approval in quarter 1 of 2018/19. 
Overall, the work of the Directorate has directly contributed to an increase in Business Rates growth for the Council of £1.24m. 

 

 

 

E17005 Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council assets 
portfolio and make it fit for purpose and sustainable. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Complete Investment Strategy and review Councils asset base to deliver increased returns for revenue and capital income  

The requirements of the Asset Strategy continue to underpin the actions of Estates & Assets team and the Operational Asset management 
Group. Some actions have been superseded or are unlikely to be achievable. A full report will be presented to the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee following the end of the current financial year   

11/04/18 

 

 

 

E17007 Improve and protect the quality of our built and natural 
environment. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Progress delivery of River Roch (Littleborough – Rochdale) flood alleviation scheme (in partnership with Environment Agency):....1) Support EA to 
complete Business Case and final design....Adopt Supplementary Planning Document for College Bank/Lower Falinge and Rochdale Infirmary sites....10 
positive actions taken to resolve significant breaches of planning/building control regulations to improve condition of derelict/vacant land and building 
construction standards across Borough... 

 

The Annual Design Awards event took place in January 2018 A ceremony was held in Rochdale Town Hall with a number of schemes highly 
commended by a Panel of judges.  The overall winner was the River reopening scheme in Rochdale Town Centre.  The Rochdale interchange 
scheme was nominated for a BBC North West Building of the Decade award with a winner to be announced during May 2018.   
A feasibility study has been commissioned with TfGM and Network Rail to develop and cost options for an improved entrance façade to Rochdale 
railway station as a major gateway entrance into the Borough.  This will be reported to Members later in 2018.   
 
As part of the successful Heritage Action Zone bid for Rochdale Town Centre, it was announced that Historic England’s Urban Design panel will 
visit Rochdale town centre to provide an independent report to guide future residential and public realm investment within the Town Centre.   
 
An Outline Business Case for the River Roch flood alleviation scheme was submitted to DEFRA in March by the Environment Agency. We are 
awaiting a decision in Summer 2018. Bid for Autumn Booster funding (£5m) submitted and awaiting a decision via DHCLG Minister and 
Exchequer. Ongoing work to confirm public consultation, landowner agreements and early full design tasks/planning applications. Planning are 
supporting work to take CPO action to resolve long standing derelict sites across the Borough following agreement for the CPO capital 
programme.  
 
Working with Strategic Housing and Townships, a number of priority derelict sites have been identified for Compulsory Purchase action, where 
necessary. The service is currently undertaking work to support the Council’s case for CPO actions.  

11/04/18 

P
age 56



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

 

 

 

E17008 Increase the quality and best use of the Borough’s Heritage 
assets. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Complete Middleton THI project to include restoration of Long Street Church and School....Develop viable and sustainable strategies for the repair 
and reuse of the Borough’s heritage assets to include:..(1) Agree long term strategy for re-use of Rochdale Town Hall..(2) Prepare development brief for 
marketing/disposal of land around Tonge Hall for enabling development ..(3) Secure grant funding for an agreed schedule of repair works to Hopwood Old 
Hall..(4) Submit Stage 2 HLF Bid for GM Fire Service Museum....Progress the ELR extension to Castleton through:....(1) Adoption of Regeneration Masterplan 
for Heywood Station and Action Plan..(2)  Completion of feasibility study at Castleton station... 

 

Revised bid for £8.9m submitted for Rochdale Town Hall on 1st December 2017. HLF decision expected early May 2018. HLF Trustees 
undertook a successful visit as part of their assessment process. Phased approach with Phase 1 works to be undertaken by RBC in advance 
(electrical, heating and some access improvements) funded from existing capital programme & completed prior to HLF final approval in 2020 
(see below). 
 
A successful Heritage Action Zone Bid was submitted to Historic England for parts of Rochdale Town Centre.  The HAZ project will launch in May 
2018 and will be a 5 year project in partnership with £500k funding from HE and staff resource. Action plan to be agreed with Historic England 
during 2018/19. 
 
Grant funding of £136k awarded by Historic England (matched by RBC capital funding) to take forward structural interventions to secure and 
weatherproof Hopwood Old Hall to support further re-use.  
 
Working with the GMCA and the Trustees of the Greater Manchester Fire Service Museum, a Stage 2 Heritage Lottery Fund bid was submitted 
for Rochdale Fire Station in March with an outcome expected in June 2018.  The  Head of HLF North West & the GM Mayor have visited the 
museum ahead of the assessment to ensure high profile of project.  RDA providing advice on business model for first floor to ensure income can 
be generated to maintain building whilst delivering opportunities for economic growth. 
 
The successful 5 year Middleton Townscape Heritage Initiative (THI) will complete during Summer 2018.  Restoration work to 51 and 53 
Rochdale Road and the exedra in Jubilee Park were completed.  A £590,000 grant towards the Long Street Methodist Church and School was 
secured from the Heritage Lottery Fund in early 2018.  A contract has been awarded, restoration work at the Long Street School is ongoing and 
should be complete by July 2018.  This is the final THI project so the entire grant scheme should be completed by August 2018. 
 
The Council commissioned a study into a preferred option to extend the East Lancashire heritage railway into Castleton through the reopening of 
an arch in the existing Manchester Road railway bridge.  Network Rail are undertaking further work to assess the feasibility of providing a 
connection between the ELR and the main Calder Valley line at Castleton.  A further options report is expected in July 2018.  The ELR and the 
Council are progressing plans to improve the ELR visitor experience at Heywood station, including the feasibility of reopening the access from 
Manchester Road into the station, and potential for additional parking, buildings and facilities.   
 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

E17009 Secure tangible benefit to the Borough from GM 
Strategies/policies/funding. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Secure £10m funding from GM for Rochdale projects....Input to GMCA preparation of Greater Manchester Plan for Homes and Jobs....Prepare  

P
age 57



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  6  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

Rochdale Rail Strategy to support GM Rail Plan....Form partnerships with adjoining Districts to plan delivery of cross boundary development 
opportunities....Prepare a pipeline of transport investment projects to support 2040 Transport Strategy and development of a GM Transport Fund 2....Work with 
Oldham to secure a direct Metrolink service to Manchester Piccadilly....Ensure leading performance in GM for GMCA commissioned Skills for Employment 
programme delivered by Employment Links through:..1) Qualifications..2) Jobs. 

Rochdale Town Centre was nominated by the Council as one of the GM towns to be included in the GM Mayor’s Town Centres Challenge.  A 
launch event and challenge to Rochdale was held on 23

rd
 March 2018.  Following this event, the Council will launch a Rochdale Town Centre 

Residential Strategy around June/July 2018.  This will identify sites for housing development within and around the town centre where it is 
considered development could come forward with some financial assistance.  It is hoped to secure some GMCA funding towards this 
masterplanning work in Q1 of 2018/19 and to submit further funding bids to the GMCA and central government in the future.. 
 
The Council is working to support the GMCA prepare a revised Draft GM Spatial Framework for a 12 week consultation during the Summer of 
2018. Working with the GMCA and the other 9 GM Districts, almost £1m has been secured from a new Planning Delivery Fund across GM to 
support this work, the largest grant nationally.  
 
A further £3m was secured from the GMCA Local Growth Fund towards the accelerated delivery of the Junction 19 link road scheme, in particular 
to support associated traffic calming works in the Hopwood Triangle.  Subject to the grant of planning permission, a further £10.3m of GMCA and 
Highways England grant funding will be provided towards the completion of the highway scheme.   
 
Work is taking place  with the GMCA and neighbouring Districts to assess the viability and deliverability of the Northern Gateway strategic 
employment sites and to review our existing brownfield land supply, site capacities and to increase densities around transport interchanges and 
town centres. The Council has inputted into the preparation of a rolling programme of transport investment projects to support the delivery of the 
2040 Transport Strategy.  The Mayoral Congestion Deal was launched in March 2018 with a number of proposals for transport investment in the 
Borough to unlock congestion on the strategic and local highway networks.    
 
The GMCA’s bid to the government’s Full Fibre Challenge Fund was successful. This provides £23.8m of funding over the next 2 years, which 
was over 25% of the national pot. The funding will pay for public sector buildings to be connected with full fibre, faster, more reliant IT 
connectivity, and this will accelerate private sector investment in all parts of GM. The target is to move from 2% to 25% full fibre coverage by 
2020. There is also a Gigabit Voucher scheme providing up to £3000 for businesses and up to £500 for residents who are part of a group project 
to contribute to the cost of a gigabit connection 
 
GM Business Start Up support: - a temporary 11 month programme called Start Smart has been launched to fill a gap in support before another 
project starts next year. This is funded by local authorities and EU funding and is providing free support through workshops, events and one-to-
one specialist advice. Drop in sessions have started in Number 1 Riverside and will move around the borough. The targets from the programme 
are: 152 residents engaged, 80 supported with pre-start advice, 24 new businesses started, and 13 young businesses, under 3 years old, to be 
provided with post start support. The project is being monitored monthly to ensure targets are on track. 
 
The GM Business Growth Hub: - GM Local authorities have agreed to invest £11.1m in the Business growth Hub to deliver a Business 
Productivity and Inclusive Growth Programme. Individual local action plans are being agreed with each local authority. A priority list of 200 
borough businesses with the highest growth potential and eligible for EU funded support is being identified and will be targeted for support to 
create new jobs and increase productivity. Local recruitment and supply chain opportunities will be part of the support provided to ensure our 
local economy benefits.   
 

11/04/18 

 

 

 

P
age 58



  

 

       

   

Economy Directorate Plan 2017-18 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  7  Of  7 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

18 April 2018 
 

  

         

E17010 Deliver high quality, effective services that exceed Council and 
national targets. 

 31 March 2018   

Objectives: Planning Performance above national targets for planning services....Successful implementation of the Council’s Asset Strategy...  

All relevant local targets have been exceeded. 
 
For planning applications, the national  targets for speed of decision making for planning were all exceeded during 2017/18 as follows:.  

 
- EEPLNI 157a - To determine 60% of Major planning applications within..13 weeks of receipt (unless extension of time negotiated) – 90.91%.... 
- EEPLNI 157b - To determine 65% of Minor planning applications within 8 weeks of receipt –80.00%.... 
- EEPLNI 157c - To determine 80% of Other planning applications within 8 weeks of receipt – 90.48%.... 
- EEPLNI 157e - To determine all planning applications within 26 weeks of receipt (unless extension of time has been agreed with the applicant) -
- 10 applications determined over 26 weeks.  
- EEPLNI 157d Fewer than 10% of Major planning applications allowed on appeal – No major appeals were allowed. 

11/04/18 

 

 

 
 

   

 P
age 59



1

Rochdale Development Agency – Investment and Marketing Delivery Plan 2017-18

1. Investment & Marketing

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area
Action   Lead Timing 

A. LEAD GENERATION AIMED TOWARDS TARGET SECTORS 
Create sector propositions and sector-based marketing material for manufacturing, logistics, and food 
and drink sectors

 This work will be carried over to 2018/19 due to lack of marketing resource.

CN 

Develop and deliver targeted marketing campaign to promote Rochdale in these three sectors, including 
working with professional advisors 

 This work will be carried over to 2018/19 due to lack of marketing resource.

CN 

Development of key 
sectors to produce 
investment leads

Research the ICT and business services sectors to identify opportunities for inward investment and to 
develop a strategy for growing these sectors in Rochdale.

 This work will be carried over to 2018/19 due to lack of resources.

CN 

Maintain and develop relationships with property agents and other professional advisors with an 
interest in Rochdale, sharing relevant marketing information with them.

 Regular interaction and contact with property agents in Manchester. 

CN/CH/MW 

Promote Rochdale to property agents and professional advisors at events and through other networking 
opportunities

• Attended Insider Business Breakfast in February.

CN/CH/MW 

Work alongside agents 
and other professional 
advisors to promote the 
borough and generate 
new enquiries

Work with Pro-Manchester to promote Rochdale to professional advisors
 Attended Pro Manchester networking event in February.

CN/CH/MW 
Manage a portfolio of enquiries from businesses in target sectors providing tailored information and 
support to secure new investment projects for Rochdale – target is 100 projects assisted and 30 project 
successes (creating 250 new jobs and safeguarding/relocating 350 jobs) 

 54 new enquiries received in Q4.
 24 project successes in 2017/18 (creating 357 new jobs and safeguarding 350 jobs).

CH/MW/CN 

Ensure businesses made aware of local funding opportunities where this support will influence their 
move/expansion  - target is £500,000 of public sector investment on assisted projects

 Grants in excess of £450k agreed and a further £350k of business rate relief approved.

CH/MW/CN 

Respond to target 
sector enquiries

Develop appropriate economic data to help support company investment decisions
 Labour market research report completed in November 2017.

CN/MW 

P
age 60



2

 Will review other investment information requirements in 2018/19.
B. ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT OF LOCAL BUSINESSES

Maintain a database of leading Rochdale businesses based upon turnover, employment, and sector
 Established and continued use of Tractivity as an account management database.

CH/CN/MW 
Deliver a ‘call and care’ programme of activity to engage with account managed businesses, to include 
company visits and contact reports – target is to account manage 50 companies

 Continued to engage with existing Account Managed businesses and add to list through Place 
Brand initiative throughout 17/18. Total now exceeds 50

 8 account management visits in Q4 - 31 visits in total in 2017/18.

CH/CN/MW 

 Identify a portfolio of 
top companies across 
the borough 

Link account management activity to the development of the Rochdale Place Brand initiative, and the 
recruitment of supporters and ambassadors, as appropriate

 Further Ambassador event held in January and Rochdale Prospectus launched.

CH/CN 

Work with the Business Growth Advisor to ensure that Rochdale businesses benefit from the services 
available through the Growth Hub – target 48 companies receiving assistance

 Joint visits made with advisor where appropriate
 15 Rochdale businesses were supported by Growth Hub advisor in Q4
 65 companies received Growth Hub assistance in 2017/18.

CH/MW/CN 

Provide referrals to the Business Growth Hub as appropriate for Rochdale businesses and those looking 
to move to the borough 

 Joint visits held throughout the year with the Advisor.

CH/MW/CN 

Targeted business 
support through the 
Business Growth Hub 
advisor

Manage and deliver Rochdale manufacturing network events that encourage businesses to share best 
practice and learn from each other – target is four events

 Growth Hub now offers a manufacturing network with series of events. Encouraged local 
businesses to get involved. Rochdale networking event held in March 2018. 

CH 

Maintain and develop relationships with selected staff at GM group of companies, including MIDAS, 
sharing relevant marketing and sector information with and obtaining data that supports the case for 
Rochdale as a business location

 MIDAS account manager has worked in RDA office to encourage better relationship
 Collaboration with MIDAS and Department for International Trade on new initiative to promote 

Rochdale as an inward investment location for manufacturing lightweight metal materials. 

CH/MW/CN 

Work with MIDAS staff on sector-based investment enquiries where Rochdale is a location option – 
target is six enquiries

 Interaction with MIDAS on a number of manufacturing and logistics projects during 17/18.

CH/MW/CN 

Closer links to the GM 
group of companies, in 
particular MIDAS and 
the Business Growth 
Hub

Work with MIDAS staff on account management of significant companies in Rochdale, including joint 
visits and information sharing – target is six joint visits

 Two joint visits undertaken in Q4 – eight in total in 2017/18. 

CH/MW/CN 

P
age 61



3

C. MARKETING STRATEGY TO ATTRACT INWARD INVESTORS
Create an overall marketing strategy for promoting Rochdale that links the work on target sectors and 
that takes account of the work of the Rochdale Place Brand initiative

 Rochdale Place Brand investment prospectus document launched in January 2018 with focus on 
target sectors and investment success stories

 Other initiatives will follow in 2018/19.

CN Prepare and implement 
a new marketing 
strategy for businesses 
in our target sectors

Create a communications plan for the promotion of Rochdale as a business location; to include the use 
of relevant websites and social media

 RDA communications work is ongoing
 Rochdale Place Brand have PR agency that RDA works with and contract manages.

CN/MW 

Develop social media channels by generating regular content and building relationships with a growing 
network of followers, using third party suppliers to support the campaign - target is to increase followers 
on twitter by 250 to 600.

 Monthly meetings with social media provider to share information
 At the end of Q4 reached 690 followers on twitter.

MW/CN/CH Increased usage of 
social media to support 
marketing campaign

Develop the level of activity on the RDA social media channels to increase the number of people that 
view the RDA content, the amount of interaction on social media, and the number of website referrals.

 RDA Staff encouraged to share good news stories.

MW/CN/CH 

Work with businesses to help with their promotion, arranging senior management visits where 
appropriate, and developing good news stories to be used on social media – target is eight stories.

 12 company visits carried out during the year.

CH/MW Structured approach to 
press releases and 
positive PR

Work with Rochdale Council’s Communications Team to develop press releases that celebrate the 
success of Rochdale businesses and that feature the Leader of the Council – target is 12 press releases.

 17  press releases issued during the year.

CH/MW 

Work with Rochdale Council’s Communications team to deliver the Rochdale Place Brand initiative 
including participation in the Steering Group and Place Board.

 Ongoing work on the Place Brand initiative with Comms with monthly meetings taking place.

CH/CN 

Arrange Place Board meetings providing administrative and secretarial support and managing 
communications with board members

 Board meetings held throughout 17/18, including one in March 2018. New Chair appointed.

CH 

Develop and manage the Rochdale Ambassadors programme meeting interested parties, recruiting 
supporters and potential ambassadors, and managing communications with them   

 Ongoing meetings with businesses held.

CH/CN 

Work with the Rochdale 
Place Brand initiative

Organise and deliver quarterly business networking events in Rochdale on behalf of the Place Board – 
target is four events.

 One event held in January 2018. Three events held in 2017/18. 

CH/CN 

P
age 62



4

Organise a business event in Manchester to showcase the Rochdale Place Brand to an audience of 
financial and professional advisors 

 This activity has been carried over to 2018/19.

CH/CN 

Work with Zen Internet and other Place Brand partners to develop marketing approaches to promoting 
Rochdale to a national and international audience 

 Marketing sub group meet monthly.

CH/CN 

Work with the Steering Group to deliver the Rochdale Business Awards in November, providing 
administrative and secretarial support and managing communications with members.

 Done.

CH 

Organise a launch event in June to attract new sponsors to the event
 Event was fully sponsored.

CH 
Encourage Ambassadors to support the event, either by way of sponsorship, or be entering their 
business in an appropriate category.

 All categories were well supported.

CH 

Coordinate the judging panels in October 2017
 Done.

CH 

Work with Rochdale 
Business Awards 
steering group

Provide practical support to the event management team
 Done.

CH 
D. SUPPORT THE GROWTH OF THE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY MARKET

Maintain regular contact with property agents to ensure that the team receives information and 
intelligence about commercial land and property in Rochdale, ensuring that the EGi property database is 
kept up to date 

 Regularly in contact with a range of agents about property availability and occupier 
requirements.

MW/CN 

Provide tailored searches for companies that are looking for commercial property in Rochdale – target is 
100 companies provided with property information

 Emailed details to well over 100 companies and will continue to monitor their requirements 
and provide ongoing support.

MW/CH/CN 

Work with Rochdale Council to secure occupiers for industrial developments delivered through the 
Asset Development Fund initiative

 Continue to provide details to enquirers and refer suitable enquiries to the council estates 
team.

 Dodgson Street (funded through ADF) was fully let on completion.

MW/CN 

General

Work with agents and owners to secure occupiers for units and design and build options on the major 
business parks in the borough including Stakehill Industrial Estate, Heywood Distribution Park, and 
Crown Business Park

MW/CH/CN 

P
age 63



5

 Regular contact with agents continues with joint company viewings of any available units at 
Stakehill and Heywood.

Work with partners to commission research into the office market in Rochdale to explore the potential 
for new office development to be brought forward in the borough

 This work will be carried over to 2018/19.

CN 

Work with Wilson Bowden and their agents to promote Kingsway Business Park to potential occupiers as 
a design and build location

 Ongoing management of Kingsway website and regular meetings with owners and agents.
 13 new enquiries in Q4 added to the general Kingsway schedule.

MW/CH/CN 

Work with Wilson Bowden, Standard Life, and their agents to secure an occupier for Kingsway 216
 Continued to work with all partners to market the unit including various campaigns and 

mailshots throughout the year – also in regular contact with the agents. Numerous viewings 
but no deal is forthcoming.

MW/CN 

Work with Ropemaker and their agents to secure occupiers for the four available units at Plot K on 
Kingsway Business Park

 K40 - sold to local textile manufacturing company
 Strong interest in K-35 from manufacturing company and K-55 has good level of interest from a 

couple of companies
 K-75 has had some viewings but no deal is imminent.

MW/CN 

Kingsway Business Park

Work with Rochdale Council, Wilson Bowden and their agents to identify potential occupiers for a 
proposed speculative development scheme on Plot D1 on Kingsway Business Park 

 Planning application approved for 11 units between 3,000 - 14,000 sq ft available for rent from 
Q4 18/19

 This funding allocation was only approved in Feb 2018 for a start in April 2018.

MW/CH/CN 

P
age 64



6

2. Business Parks 

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Action Lead Timing 

A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):  

Work to deliver development across the Business Park in accordance with the overall Strategic 
Objectives of the Kingsway Partnership 

DC/RD/ER Mar 18 

Manage the  construction of a feature wall at the southern end of Sir Isaac Newton Way
 Feature wall at the southern end of Sir Isaac Newton Way has been installed 
 Potential site identified for a second feature wall at the northern end of Sir Isaac Newton Way, 

at the corner of Michael Faraday Avenue.  Discussions are ongoing with landowner and RBC 
Highways with a view to submitting a planning application in summer 2018.

ER 

Manage technical specialists to undertake site investigations for Plots V and M   
 Site investigation report received Autumn 2017. No significant ground condition issues 

identified on Plot V
 This action is complete and the technical information can be used to inform future 

development.

RD/ER 

Secure adoption of the Stanney Brook Corridor and Pond by Rochdale Council  
 Stanney Brook Corridor North and the Northern Ponds were transferred from Homes England 

to Rochdale Council in December 2017
 A commuted sum for maintenance will be payable by Wilson Bowden to Rochdale Council, 

staged over a 5 year period.

RD 

Working with the Kingsway Partnership, prepare a response to the compensation claim for the former 
Hartle site   

 Discussions with the Hartle Estates Legal Team are being led by Homes England and Wilson 
Bowden Developments 

 This matter is still ongoing but a deal may be close.

DC/RD 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to secure funding and planning permission for a small unit 
scheme    

 Planning application approved by Rochdale Council (Planning) for 11 small units on Plot D. 
Construction start on site due in April 2018

 A financial deal has been agreed between Rochdale Council and Wilson Bowden Developments. 

DC/RD 

Kingsway Business Park

Work with Transport for Greater Manchester to secure the continuation of the Kingsway Link bus 
service for 2018/19      

RD/ER 

P
age 65



7

 ASDA, JD Sports and Wilson Bowden Developments made financial contributions to the bus 
service for 2017/18. Further contributions have been agreed which will enable the bus service 
to continue until at least March 2019

 Discussions are ongoing with TFGM who remain supportive of the continuation of the bus 
service. 

Agree an action plan with the Homes and Communities Agency for Dixon Green and Silver Hill Farms, 
and commence implementation    

 Homes England, working with RDA and Rochdale Council’s Conservation Officer, are developing 
a disposal strategy for these listed buildings

 A Heritage Significance Study has been completed which will inform the way forward.

RD/ER 

Work with the organiser of the Rochdale Half Marathon to ensure that Kingsway receives positive 
publicity from the event 

 The race took place Sunday 8th October 2017 with Kingsway included on the 10km route.  Over 
900 runners took part introducing Kingsway to a potentially new audience

 The 2018 race date has been set as for 7th October.

RD 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to deliver a CCTV system to help improve security across the Business 
Park

 This 12-camera system became operational in December 2017 and covers key roads and known 
traveller and fly-tipping hot spots across Kingsway

 The system is linked to the central control room in Rochdale Town Centre, which is monitored 
by GM Police.

ER 

Work with the Kingsway Partnership to prepare and agree a development strategy for Plots V & M  
 Future plans still to be agreed, with a number of proposals discussed during 17/18. Focus for 

2017-18 became a number of other schemes including Plot D small units and a number of 
significant inward investor enquiries.     

RD/ER  

Work with Kingsway Partnership to secure physical completion of the exterior of the JD Sports Extension
 External construction work was completed in February 2018
 Internal fit out is expected to be completed by late summer 2018, at which point the extension 

(known as Distribution Centre 2) will become operational. 

RD 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to secure a retail or similar ‘village centre’ use on Plot U  
 WBD are having ongoing discussions with a potential retail occupier but are struggling to secure 

a deal at this time. 

RD/ER 

Work with Kingsway Partnership to submit planning applications for 2 new buildings across the Business 
Park   

 Plot D Planning application was approved in early 2018 (11 small units)
 Balance Power planning application for a power generation plant was approved in early 2018

RD/ER 

P
age 66



8

 Broadshaw Farm has been brought back into use as a bed showroom.
Work with Commercial Estates Group, other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the 
economic attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial Estate 
Note: CEG have now sold their interest to UBS who have appointed Canmoor to manage the Estate.

RD/ER Mar 18

Work with CEG to implement a consistent and coherent signage strategy across the Estate      
 New totem signage installed at the Whitbrook Way entrance to Stakehill in June 2017
 Canmoor have implemented new directional signage across the estate.   

RD 

Work with partners to deliver an occupier event 
 Business Breakfast took place on 11th July – attended by approximately 25 businesses   
 Following business breakfast, a Highways Working Group has been set up which had its 

inaugural meeting in October 2017
 A further event will be organised once the CCTV order has been placed and parking solutions 

have been agreed with Highways. 

ER 

Implement an agreed security solution at the Whitbrook Way entrance to the Stakehill Industrial Estate 
 Proposals for a CCTV system to be implemented (see below).

RD/ER 

Work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to implement a CCTV system across the Estate  
 7 camera system is proposed for the Estate 
 Rochdale Boroughwide Housing / RDA have visited all premises identified as being suitable for 

the relay units and detailed equipment specifications will be sent to the businesses. Detailed 
negotiations on licenses are progressing, and 2/4 have been agreed.

ER 

Stakehill Industrial 
Estate

Work with Rochdale Council and business to develop an agreed vehicle parking solution across the 
Estate, including the potential introduction of yellow lining      

 Highways Working Group asked for the potential for a truck stop to be explored fully prior to 
any other solutions being implemented

 RBC Highways have been asked to look at options for off-street parking, however this has been 
delayed for over 3 months due to Highways.

RD/ER 

Work with Partners and Rochdale Council to progress the Link Road Scheme through to a stage where 
it can be commenced on site in 2018/19      

DC/SP/RD/ER Mar 18 

Work with partners and Rochdale Council to ensure an agreed solution to achieve the diversion of the 
National Grid pipeline.

 Discussions are ongoing with Cadent to explore the potential for the pipeline to be diverted in 
2019 or 2020.   

RD/ER 

South Heywood Link 
Road / Development

Work with partners and Rochdale Council to secure a positive recommendation for the planning 
application for the new link road and associated residential / employment development between the 
M62 and Pilsworth Road

DC/RD/ER 

P
age 67



9

 The application was ‘Minded to Approved’ by Planning and Licensing Committee in March 2018
 It has now been referred to the Secretary of State for a decision about whether it will be called 

in or not. 
Agree heads of terms for the legal agreement between the Council and the developer for the Junction 
19 Link Road scheme to secure funding for the scheme 

 Discussions are ongoing between RBC and Russell Homes
 This was put on hold until after the planning committee on the 22nd March.

DC/RD/SP 

Work with partners to ensure that legal agreements with all landowners necessary to enable the 
development of the road and associated development are signed   

 Russell Homes are leading on negotiations with landowners for the development
 All land required to construct the new road is covered by legal option agreements between 

Russell Homes and individual landowners.   

DC/RD/SP 

Work with external funders to ensure that their information requirements are met    
 Regular monthly meetings held with TfGM. RBC Highways hold regular meetings with Highways 

England
 Joint working has taken place with TfGM on a number of matters including the approach to 

procurement of contractors, refinement of cost estimates and construction programme.

RD/ER 

Work with Rochdale Council to ensure the completed design development of the link road
 Highway Design work is complete other than the Highways England works relating to the 

motorway junction which should be complete by June 2018.

RD/ER 

Work with Rochdale Council to ensure the completion of the tender document for the link road  
 The approach to main contractor procurement is subject to ongoing discussions. Appropriate 

tender documentation will be prepared after those discussions have been completed.

RD/ER 

B. Proactively encourage new investment in sites and premises by:

Manage the Asset Development Fund,  working in partnership with Rochdale Council DC/LR/SP Mar 18
Prepare financially viable direct development schemes for 2 council owned sites across the Borough

 Industrial unit scheme being prepared for ‘Mossfield’, Heywood
 Working with Highways to explore the options for providing access to the Kelvin Avenue, 

Middleton site
 Both are financially viable based on preliminary appraisals and market testing.

LR/SP 

Commence the construction of the Dodgson Street direct development scheme
 Construction completed October 2017
 All 7 units occupied.

LR/SP 

Undertaking Direct 
Development (Asset 
Development Fund) 

Submit a planning application for 1 direct development scheme 
 Funding and Legal Agreements agreed for Kingsway Plot D. 

LR/SP 

P
age 68



10

Manage the Commercial Investment Fund, working in partnership with Rochdale Council  DC/LR/SP Mar 18
Identify 4 opportunities where the Commercial Investment Fund can be used to the benefit of Rochdale 
Borough

 3 Properties have been purchased – Mecca, M&S and Foot Asylum – with a number of other 
opportunities assessed but dismissed (spend brought forward from 18/19 to fund one of these)

 2 new opportunities are being evaluated and assessed
 Future years’ funding is to be brought forward to 2017/18 to enable further purchases if 

identified.

LR/SP 
Commercial Investment  
Fund  

Complete 2 deals totalling up to £10m of investment  where the Commercial Investment Fund is used 
for the benefit of Rochdale Borough 

 Foot Asylum, M&S and Mecca, Rochdale acquired for over £18m.

LR/SP 

Work with the private sector and other partners to identify 3 opportunities for building refurbishment 
and/or new build employment developments 

 3 properties have been refurbished at Stakehill (units previously occupied by Culina and Aldi (2 
units). All of these now have new occupiers

 Rochdale Central was bought by PIN in Q1 and has had 2 buildings refurbished.

RD/ER Working with the 
private sector to deliver 
development

Work with the private sector and other partners to secure 1 start on site for a refurbishment and/or 
new build employment development 

 5 properties have been refurbished at Stakehill (units previously occupied by Tesco, Culina, 
Sainsbury and Aldi (2 units)). 3 of these now have new occupiers

 The extension of JD Sports at Kingsway was externally completed in early 2018.

RD/ER 

C. Support development along major gateways

Work with RBC Highways to commence construction of the new road at Lincoln Close
 Lincoln Close link road scheme commenced work on site in January 2018.

RD 
Work with RBC Highways to secure an appropriate vehicular access solution to the Oldham Road/ 
Durham Street development site (former Bradferns)   

 Access will be from the new road at Lincoln Close. Discussions are ongoing with RBC Highways 
about the most appropriate type of scheme.   

RD/LR 

Work with the owners of the Sandbrook Office Park to agree a strategy for the remainder of their site  
 Discussions with Northern Trust have indicated the development is not currently viable. Will be 

picked up again in 18/19.

RD/ER 

Gateway Developments 

At the Edinburgh Way development site (former Royle Works), work with Rochdale Council and the site 
owner to agree a development strategy for the site

 Owner will not work with RDA – Mark Robinson will lead for the Council.

RD/ER 

P
age 69



11

3. Town Centres

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area Action Lead Timing 

A. Reduce vacancies in Town Centres

Continue promotion and implementation of Business Rates Relief scheme and seek to secure the re-
occupation of 6 vacant properties in the town centres.

 4 applications approved in 2017.

LR Business Rates 
Reduction scheme and 
for Rochdale, Heywood 
and Middleton Monitor vacancy levels including the implications of the business rates revaluation and transitional relief 

on RTC and prepare a report on the success on a quarterly basis. 
 Monitoring of vacancy levels is taking place
 Vacancy levels are recorded quarterly.  

LR 

Independent retailer 
shop front & support 
scheme

Continue promotion and implementation of the shopfront & start up grant scheme for independent 
retailers and seek to secure 6 grant approvals

 6 applications approved in 2017. 

LR 

Rochdale town centre 
vacancies 

Prepare schedule of vacancies in Rochdale town centre with support from TCM and discuss bespoke 
actions with landlords and agents to promote occupation of vacant properties

 In discussion with agents and property owners
 Press releases published by Comms.

LR 

B. Rochdale Riverside  

Work with Genr8 to secure planning  permission for the scheme and to discharge any planning 
conditions and Section 106 agreements

 Planning permission was granted in June 2017 (with a completed S106 Agreement).  The 
relevant pre-commencement planning conditions have been discharged 

 Planning conditions discharged 5th January 2018.

GD/ER 

Confirm and implement the necessary road closure and TRO requirements for the scheme 
 The road closure application has been approved by DfT
 TRO’s are all in place to enable scheme to progress. 

GD/ER 

Deliver the new  
Rochdale Riverside
retail and leisure 
development 

Undertake marketing and agree terms and conditions of the funding agreement with Genr8 and secure 
Cabinet approval

 Cabinet approval has been secured and the Funding Agreement has been completed with the 
selected funder.

GD 

P
age 70



12

Work with Genr8 to procure a contractor and complete a build contract for the scheme in accordance 
with the Agreement for Lease 

 The build contract has been completed and construction has started on site. 

SP 

Work with Genr8 to secure further occupiers for the scheme 
 M&S, Next and Reel have all formally signed up to the scheme, although M&S have recently 

announced that they no longer intend to occupy the scheme
 River Island, Boots and JD Sports have been signed up to occupy the scheme. Discussions are 

on-going with other occupiers.

SP/ER 

Ensure the Council secures good and marketable title to the development site 
 The remaining outstanding title matter with the PCT is now resolved. 

GD/ER 
Work with Genr8 to agree the scheme appraisal and cost plan

 The build costs are confirmed with the selected contractor and the appraisal has been finalised. 
GD/SP 

Monitor compliance with  the legal obligations contained in the Agreement for Lease 
 Work is on-going to ensure Council’s obligations under the legal agreement are satisfied.

GD/ER 
Manage temporary occupation and maintenance of the Baillie Street properties and work with Genr8 to 
agree long term proposals for the properties and submission of the planning application

 Two of the properties are currently vacant. The planning application for the long term use of 
the properties has been approved

 19 Baillie Street to be vacated by the current tenant on 30th April 2018.

GD/LR 

Work with Genr8 to establish the proposals for Phase 2 of the scheme  
 Phase 2 options have been on hold until Phase 1 is on site, and are the subject of a workshop in 

April.

 SP/ER 

C. Rochdale Town Centre 

Conclude contractual and financial agreements with Quarterbridge
 HoTs for lease for the food hall and license to occupy the market agreed
 Negotiations ongoing with final draft contracts currently with concessionaire for sign off.

JH 

Agree and complete adaptation works to former Santander building to provide an indoor market
 Phase 1 (remediation work) and Phase 2 (structural work) complete
 Phase 3 (fit out work) the detailed design is agreed in principle with the market operator and 

contractor is on site carrying out works.

LR 

Create a relocated 
indoor and outdoor 
market

Work with Quarterbridge to agree approach to closing temporary market including  consultation with 
existing traders

 Approach agreed and management transferred from RBC to RDA of temporary site on lower 
Yorkshire Street operating three days a week

 Market closed and temporarily relocated to lower Yorkshire Street.  The wooden cabins are to 

JH 

P
age 71



13

be removed w/c 9th October.
Confirm final detailed design and implement the servicing & loading scheme in accordance with an 
agreed programme 

 Revised scheme agreed with Highways and approved by the Leader in December 17
 Met with the taxi drivers and market operator in order to resolve issues and concerns
 Final plans to be sent to Taxi Drivers in April 18

LR 

Confirm layout and secure establishment of the outdoor market on The Butts
 Final layout option is being worked up by the operator
 Work ongoing to address concerns re exposed site and requirement for power to stalls.

LR 

Secure planning permission, highway closure and CPO for the scheme 
 Planning consent approved, CPO completed, highway closures ongoing (see loading above).

JH 
Baillie Street and lower 
Yorkshire Street paving 

Monitor completion of the scheme & undertake consultation and liaison with businesses  
 The paving scheme is complete.

ER 
Finalise the strategy and Action Plan and seek Member endorsement 

 Discussed with Leader, currently updating and reviewing
 HAZ proposal approved by Historic England to enhance the strategy.  5 year project in 

partnership with £500k funding from HE and staff resource. Action plan to be agreed with HE.

NB Drake Street strategy 

Implementation first phase of projects and initiatives identified in the agreed Action Plan 
 Number 1 Drake Street and Ivesons site projects under development.

NB 
Rochdale town centre 
masterplan & action 
plan 

Confirm and complete the masterplan and associated action plans in consultation with internal 
stakeholders and Members

 The initial draft of the strategy has been shared with Members. Further work is now underway 
to complete the first draft by mid-2018

 Plan to be revised to include Labour manifesto projects.  

ER 

D. Middleton Town Centre 

Warwick Mill 
Redevelopment

Work with the owners to prepare a viable regeneration scheme for Warwick Mill and London House, to 
bring the mill back into a productive end use. 

 G Suite (owners) state they are developing a proposal for residential conversion of London 
House and Warwick Mill which is with the Hong Kong based Board of Directors. However, they 
have also advised that Warwick Mill is not currently the focus of their investment attention.       

RD/ER 

E. Rochdale Town Hall 

Implement the long 
term Town Hall HLF 
strategy

Undertake work needed to progress Heritage Lottery Bid development phase, including development of 
activity plan, designs, cost plan & business plan and the soft market testing of commercial partners 
(subject to HLF approval)

JH 

P
age 72



14

 Revised bid for £8.9m submitted on 1st December 2017. HLF decision expected late April/early 
May 2018. HLF Trustees undertook a successful visit as part of their assessment process

 Phased approach with Phase 1 works to be undertaken by RBC in advance (electrical, heating 
and some access improvements) funded from existing capital programme & completed prior to 
HLF final approval in 2020 (see below).

Commence procurement of Design Team
 Procurement of design team to co-ordinate the phased approach via STaR for team to be in 

place for April
 Brief finalised, market engagement day being organised in April alongside Town Hall Square 

opportunity with OJEU Compliant tender package being prepared by STaR procurement

JH 

Coordinate implementation of the short term improvement works to Rochdale Town Hall including 
engagement with Historic England 

 Ongoing.

JH 

Prepare and commence implementation of an alternative strategy for the Town Hall should the HLF bid 
be unsuccessful 

 Alternative strategies identified through options appraisal
 Resubmission of the bid in December 2017 has put this on hold for now

JH 

Agree scope of works and procure specialist design advice for the Town Hall Square and The Esplanade 
through a design competition  

 Brief finalised, market engagement day being organised in April with OJEU Compliant tender 
package being prepared by STaR procurement.

JH/NE 

Assess feasibility and identify projects for the wider Town Hall Square & Cultural Heritage quarter and 
alignment of the works with Town Hall adaptation 

 Phase 1 Town Hall Square complete (see below)
 Funding bid to DCMS unsuccessful and feedback has indicated that projects were awarded 

based on political decisions. GMCA are exploring a range of alternative funding packages to 
ensure that project can progress

 Works to Town Hall Square will be co-ordinated with the progression of Town Hall scheme as 
well as other local investments (such as former post office) to ensure complementarity.

JH/NE 

Complete schedule of work and plans for the wider Town Hall Square & Cultural Heritage quarter to 
include programme and implement any work identified in 17/18

 Phase 1 works completed to lighting and decluttering of street lighting completed.

JH/NE 

Town Hall Square & 
Cultural Heritage 
quarter 

Coordinate feasibility study for architectural lighting in town centre - Town Hall and key buildings in 
conservation area

 Tender package completed and architectural lighting to Touchstones and in the Memorial 
Gardens expected to be tendered in April with delivery of schemes by September.

JH/NE 

P
age 73



15

F. Heritage assets 

Agree boundary, prepare development brief, secure planning permission and undertake valuation of 
enabling development in dialogue with Historic England

 Agreed boundary, development brief prepared
 Valuation has identified opportunities
 Intended to bring Middleton Technology College into the scheme to provide opportunities for 

students to be involved in the project
 Discussions being held with local business regarding capacity for expansion of operations to 

further enhance scheme. Anticipated that site can be marketed over summer. 

NE Middleton Tonge Hall

Prepare brief for repair works to building in dialogue with Historic England
 Awaiting opportunity to market site in order to progress stabilisation works.

NE 
Ensure submission of Heritage Lottery Fund Round 2 funding application bid for the building 

 Round 2 bid submitted to HLF in March with outcome expected in June
 Head of HLF North West & GM Mayor have visited the museum ahead of the assessment to 

ensure high profile of project.

NE Rochdale Fire Station 
Museum

Provide project management support for the appointment of consultants to complete surveys, research 
and investigations

 Work towards HLF project completed
 RDA providing advice on business model for first floor to ensure income can be generated to 

maintain building whilst delivering opportunities for economic growth.

NE 

Identify funding for essential works needed to protect features of extraordinary significance and to 
continue regular inspections and repairs, in discussion with Historic England 

 Grant funding of £136k awarded by Historic England (matched by RBC capital funding) to take 
forward structural interventions addressing finding of Ramboll Report.

NB Hopwood Hall

Work with Hopwood DePree and Historic England to prepare a coherent and deliverable programme for 
the restoration and re-use of the building 

 Following discussions with HLF and support from RDA/RBC, Hopwood DePree has submitted a 
small development grant application to assist in working up the longer term plans and 
programme beyond the ‘at risk’ works. HDP also working with Manchester University School of 
Architecture and engaging with other stakeholders

 Ongoing work with HHC to agree access and engagement. 

NB 

P
age 74



16

RDA KPIs Year end

Performance Indicators
RDA 

Annual 
Target

Investment 
Team Only

Quarter 
4 Year end Commentary

Number of companies receiving support from 
Business Growth Hub 48 48 15 65  Target exceeded.

Number of successful inward investment 
projects receiving RDA assistance 10 10 1 8  Team continues to work with several businesses whose relocations 

will happen in the next financial year.

Number of local companies 
relocating/expanding with RDA assistance 20 20 2 16  Team continues to work with several businesses whose expansion or 

relocation will happen in the next financial year.

Number of jobs safeguarded/relocated by RDA 
assisted companies 350 350 79 357  Target exceeded.

Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted 
companies or projects 250 250 54 344  Target exceeded.

Amount of floor space occupied by RDA 
assisted projects (sq ft) 500,000 500,000 94,330 462,380 

Team continues to work with several businesses whose relocations 
will happen in the next financial year.

Total level of public sector investment secured 
or spent on RDA assisted projects £3.5m £500k £4,350,875  Target exceeded.

Total level of private sector investment generated 
by assisted projects £20m £10m £32,602,000  Target exceeded.

Number of vacant properties re-occupied with 
support of Town Centre business rates scheme 6 0 1 4  Interest reduced due to rates revaluation in April.

Number of grant approvals for the Town 
Centre shopfront & start up grant scheme 6 0 1 6  Target met.

P
age 75



17

Amount of commercial floor space built with 
RDA support (sq ft) 150,000 0 Annual 524,530  Target exceeded.

Amount of commercial floor space refurbished 
with RDA support (sq ft) 150,000 150,000 Annual 637,000  Includes Maqio 46,000 and Flip Out 32,000 sq ft.

Key Activity Indicators 

Total number of enquiries 200 200 55 172  Level of enquiries is steady and whilst slightly below target, quality of 
enquiries has improved.

Number of enquiries receiving ongoing 
assistance 100 100 13 65  Some of the enquiries have needed significant support and ongoing 

assistance.

Number of Rochdale companies account 
managed 50 50 8 31  Trying to match these with Ambassador visits and has proved 

difficult.

Number of positive news stories issued 20 20 4 17  These include the Meet the Buyer with Willmott Dixon for Rochdale 
Riverside and the planning for Plot D on Kingsway.

Number of new social media followers 250 250 90 690  These are twitter followers. 

P
age 76



ECONOMY DIRECTORATE – OUTPUTS AND OUTCOMES 2017/18

8 new inward investors 
assisted

16 borough businesses 
helped to 

expand/relocate

363
new jobs created

357
jobs safeguarded

3964 borough residents 
with improved 
employability

1060 qualifications 
obtained by 

unemployed residents 
(not eligible to be funded 

elsewhere)

564 people helped into 
employment

48,730 sq m built
59,179 sq m 
refurbished

£32.6m private sector 
investment  

£1.24m Business Rates 
growth

£5,039,074 income to the 
Council

£5,644,600 external 
funding secured

£4.4m wages earned 
from assisted 
unemployed moving into 
work 

£5.5m Savings to the 
public sector from 
moving  592 into 
employment 

Additional GVA from 
residents  moving into 
work - £8.6m

Additional GVA from 
development activity 
- £39.5m

                
57  positive press stories on local, regional and 
national media

Over 500 new homes built

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16

17 18

Page 77

https://www.google.co.uk/search?safe=strict&biw=1024&bih=763&tbm=isch&sa=1&q=commerce+icons+UK&oq=commerce+icons+UK&gs_l=img.12...23201.24593.0.27222.9.7.0.0.0.0.678.678.5-1.1.0....0...1c.1.64.img..8.0.0.LX6N0-bBbGM
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjuttOrlNHUAhXBvRQKHQiEAykQjRwIBw&url=https://www.sap.com/uk/developer/topics/mobile.html&psig=AFQjCNFIKJQ8-66he5emfYebG7QkEmLKFQ&ust=1498210796688149
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjW9_7os_vSAhWJbRQKHfe9BaIQjRwIBw&url=http://customerplus.co.uk/&psig=AFQjCNE6bTfazXx77nXbOwK_OhCxuzUPRA&ust=1490866075747962
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://www.autoenrolment.co.uk/images/hero/icon-employers-grey-741afa85.svg&imgrefurl=https://www.autoenrolment.co.uk/knowledge-bank/in-depth-articles/workplace-pensions-guide&docid=nOco1OYV9DWnEM&tbnid=ODl0EFw9b09-WM:&vet=10ahUKEwj13eyHs_vSAhXmKMAKHTaeCxkQMwgkKAgwCA..i&w=800&h=800&safe=strict&bih=763&biw=1024&q=employment%20icons%20UK&ved=0ahUKEwj13eyHs_vSAhXmKMAKHTaeCxkQMwgkKAgwCA&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=http://us.123rf.com/450wm/seamartini/seamartini1304/seamartini130400093/19373204-pound-symbol-of-british-currency-with-many-business-icons.jpg?ver%3D6&imgrefurl=http://www.123rf.com/clipart-vector/uk_pound.html&docid=pzRQvAugVFapfM&tbnid=uQKJKB77bRBCwM:&vet=10ahUKEwj34tLQqPvSAhXBK8AKHZHADFQQMwgiKAYwBg..i&w=347&h=450&itg=1&safe=strict&bih=763&biw=1024&q=business%20icons%20UK&ved=0ahUKEwj34tLQqPvSAhXBK8AKHZHADFQQMwgiKAYwBg&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiwtMyGkc_UAhWGBBoKHaVRA9MQjRwIBw&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/201141/card_cash_credit_currency_disbursement_dollars_finance_money_pay_payment_remuneration_salary_wage_wages_icon&psig=AFQjCNFft-6CT6ee8GLtDZmcACEAX2kW5Q&ust=1498141205266735
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://www.shepherdsfriendly.co.uk/wp-content/themes/ShepherdsFriendly/assets/images/flexible-savings-icon.png&imgrefurl=https://www.shepherdsfriendly.co.uk/plans/savings/isa/what-is-a-stocks-and-shares-isa&docid=WrBExNqBTQKI9M&tbnid=cIoGT4CGWW-uLM:&vet=1&w=180&h=174&safe=strict&bih=770&biw=1536&ved=0ahUKEwjy-JqzkM_UAhWCXhQKHZf9CtQQxiAIFygC&iact=c&ictx=1
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://oscar.ofm.co.za//media/1/1/4/77/c43b5743-0ffd-414a-905c-9d3441be6567.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.ofm.co.za/article/the-delightful-blog/242224/afternoon-delight-a-whole-bunch-of-good-news-&docid=Hjg6hFuM0TuvCM&tbnid=HxuwFL1AzezeoM:&vet=10ahUKEwiFib3a993UAhWCOsAKHTN8BP4QMwgsKAcwBw..i&w=900&h=900&safe=strict&bih=770&biw=1536&q=good%20news%20image&ved=0ahUKEwiFib3a993UAhWCOsAKHTN8BP4QMwgsKAcwBw&iact=mrc&uact=8


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2018/2019 

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc. that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will
be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



28th June 2018

27th September 2018

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates – 1st Quarter 
Reports 2018/19

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring  – Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Performance update report

21st November 2018

Work Programme Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
Update Update for information

Directorate Plan Updates – 2nd Quarter 
Reports 2018/19

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)
Performance Monitoring 2017/18 - 
Registered Providers

Performance management and 
monitoring

Playing Pitch Strategy Scrutiny of proposals

24th January 2019

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates – 3rd Quarter 
2018/19

Performance management and 
monitoring

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/2019

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2017/18

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates – 4th Quarter 
Reports 2017/18

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information/discussion

Page 79



Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)
Environmental Enforcement Policy Update Scrutiny of proposals
Waste Collection Policy Update Scrutiny of proposals
Adverse  Weather Plan Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA Scrutiny Minutes For information/discussion

Page 80


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Local Welfare Provision Year End Report 2017/18
	Append. 1 for Local Welfare Provision Year End Report 2017/18

	7 Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	NeighbourhoodsDirectoratePlanFinalDraftv2

	8 Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 3 for Economy Directorate Plan 2017/18 Quarter 4 Performance Update

	9 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2018/19

